

REPORT OF THE TWENTY-FIRST SESSION OF THE JOINT FAO/WHO CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

Rome, 3 - 8 July 1995

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Summary and Conclusions

- agreed to advise FAO/WHO that the presence of consumers and other organizations as observers in meetings of the Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee on Food Additives and the Joint FAO/WHO Meetings on Pesticide Residues would improve transparency of decision-making (paragraph 90); and
- recommended that countries which had not yet established a national Codex Committee with consumer representation should do so as a matter of priority (paragraph 90).

FOOD AND AGRICULTURE ORGANIZATION OF THE UNITED NATIONS WORLD HEALTH ORGANIZATION Rome, 1995

Hyperlinks to non-FAO Internet sites do not imply any official endorsement of or responsibility for the opinions, ideas, data or products presented at these locations, or guarantee the validity of the information provided. The sole purpose of links to non-FAO sites is to indicate further information available on related topics.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Summary and Conclusions

Introduction

In Memoriam

Adoption of the Agenda

Election of Officers of the Commission and Members of the Executive Committee and Appointment of Regional Coordinators

Report on the Financial Situation of the Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme for 1994/95 and 1996/97

Implementation of the Medium-Term Plan of the Codex Alimentarius Commission

- (a) Report on Progress in Achieving the Medium-Term Plan
- (b) Strategies for Achieving the Medium-Term Plan

Implementation of the Uruguay Round of Multilateral Trade Negotiations

- (a) Working Arrangements Between the Codex Alimentarius Commission and the World Trade Organization
- (b) Acceptance of Codex Standards in Relation to the SPS and TBT Agreement

Consideration of Proposals to Base Codex Standards and Other Recommendations on Scientific Principles and the Extent to Which Other Factors Need to Be Taken into Account

Risk Assessment/Risk Analysis in Codex: Recommendations of a Joint FAO/WHO

Expert Consultation

<u>Cooperation with the United Nations Economic Commission for Europe (UNECE) in the</u> Elaboration of Worldwide Standards for Fresh Fruits and Vegetables

Consideration of Amendments to the Procedural Manual of the Codex Alimentarius Commission

Rules of Procedure

- Rule IV.6 Quorum
- Rule II Officers

Guidelines for Codex Committees and General Principles of the Codex Alimentarius

Consideration of Draft and Proposed Draft Standards and Related Texts for General Application

Food Additives

- Draft Preamble to the Codex General Standard for Food Additives
- Amendments to the International Numbering System

Pesticide Residues

- Maximum Residue Limits
- General comments on the work of the Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues Residues of Veterinary Drugs

- Draft Maximum Residue Limits for 5 Growth Hormones at Step 8
- Draft Maximum Residue Limits for Bovine Somatotropins at Step 8

Food Labelling

- Proposed Draft Guidelines for the Use of Health and Nutrition Claims, including the

Table of Conditions for Claims for Nutrient Contents

Food Hygiene

- Draft (Regional) Code of Hygienic Practice for the Preparation and Sale of Street-Vended Foods Latin America and the Caribbean
- Proposed Draft (Regional) Code of Hygienic Practice for Street Foods Africa
- Proposed Draft (Revised) International Code of Practice: General Principles of Food
 Hygiene

Methods of Analysis and Sampling

- Recommended Protocol for the Design, Conduct and Interpretation of Method

<u>Performance Studies and Harmonized Protocol for the Proficiency Testing of (Chemical)</u>

Analytical Laboratories

- Methods of Analysis and Sampling Endorsed by the Codex Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling

Import/Export Inspection and Certification Systems

- Draft Principles for Food Import and Export Inspection and Certification

Consideration of Draft and Proposed Draft Standards and Related Texts for Specific

Commodities

Fish and Fishery Products

- Draft Standard for Quick Frozen Shrimps or Prawns
- Draft Standard for Canned Crab
- Other Matters

Fats and Oils

- Draft Standard for Palm Olein and Draft Standard for Palm Stearin
- Proposed Draft Standard for Olive Oil and Olive Pomace Oils
- Proposed Draft Standard for Products Sold as an Alternative to Ghee
- Proposed Draft Standard for Fat Spreads
- Proposed Draft Standard for Mayonnaise
- Proposed Draft Code of Practice for the Storage and Transport of Edible Oils and Fats in Bulk

Milk and Milk Products

- Draft Standard for Whey Powders
- Draft Standard for Edible Casein Products

Tropical Fresh Fruits and Vegetables

- Litchi
- Avocado
- Mangosteen

Cereals, Pulses, Legumes and Derived Products

- Wheat Flour
- Edible Cassava Flour

- Certain Pulses
- Guideline Level and Sampling Plan for Total Aflatoxins in Peanuts Intended for further Processing
- Adjournment of the Committee on Cereals, Pulses and Legumes sine die

Foods for Special Dietary Uses

Sugars and Honey

- Revised Codex Standard for Sugars and Honey

Soups and Broths

- Draft Revised Codex Standard for Bouillons and Consomm &

Other Products

Consideration of Proposals to Elaborate New Standards and/or Related Texts

Matters Arising from Codex Committees

Confirmation of Chairmanship of Codex Committees

Other Business

Consumer Involvement in the Work of Codex

Status of Potential European Community Membership of the Codex Alimentarius

Commission

Standards for Coconut Products

Duration of Commission Sessions

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 List of Participants

Appendix 2 Four Statements of Principle Concerning the Role of Science in the Codex

Decision-Making Process and the Extent to Which Other Factors Are Taken into

Account

Appendix 3 Amendments to the Rules of Procedure of the Codex Alimentarius Commission

Revision of the Procedural Manual: Amendments to the General Principles of the Codex Alimentarius, Guidelines for Codex Committees and Relations Between Codex Commodity Committees and General Committees

Provisions to be Amended in the Procedural Manual to Remove Gender-Specific References (English Only)

Appendix 4 List of Standards and Related Texts Adopted by the 21st Session of the Codex Alimentarius Commission

Appendix 5 Confirmation of Chair of Codex Committees under Rule IX.10

7. The following persons were appointed as Regional Coordinators:

Africa Mr. David Nhari (Zimbabwe)

Asia Dr. Yuzo Hayashi (Japan)

Latin America and the Caribbean Dr. Galdos Ugarte (Uruguay)

Europe Prof. S. Slorach (Sweden)

North America and the South-West Mr. P.J. O'Hara (New

Pacific Zealand)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL SITUATION OF THE JOINT FAO/WHO FOOD STANDARDS PROGRAMME FOR 1994/95 AND 1996/974 (Agenda Item 3)

8. The Commission:

- <u>noted</u> the financial situation of the Programme for 1994/95, especially the fact that the Programme was operating effectively within its budgeted resources;
- noted that the level of the Joint FAO/WHO budget for 1996/97 would remain at the same level as for 1994/95, subject to confirmation by the parent agencies in the light of budgetary constraints to which both organizations were being subjected;
- endorsed the proposal to establish a new Professional post within the Secretariat and
 within the existing budget for collecting and disseminating technical information on the
 scientific and technical bases for Codex Standards and other recommendations;
- noted the reduction by \$US100 000 of additional Codex funds provided by FAO for documentation and called for continued effort to reduce costs in this and other areas;
- <u>requested</u> the Secretariat to report on the cost implications of providing documentation and interpretation in the Arabic language;
- requested the Secretariat to report on the implications of establishing innovative
 mechanisms (such as trust fund) with contributions from external partners for the
 purpose of strengthening the work of the Commission, at the national and international
 level and particularly participation of developing countries in the various aspects of
 work of the Codex;
- <u>endorsed</u> the recommendation of the Executive Committee that future reports should also provide estimates of the financial support provided by Host Governments.

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MEDIUM-TERM PLAN OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION⁵ (Agenda Item 4)

(A) REPORT ON PROGRESS IN ACHIEVING THE MEDIUM-TERM PLAN

(B) STRATEGIES FOR ACHIEVING THE MEDIUM-TERM PLAN

- 9. The Commission <u>expressed</u> its satisfaction on the progress made in achieving the Medium-Term Plan adopted at its 20th Session (1993). It <u>noted</u> that some areas of work were proceeding more slowly than expected. However, in the programmed review and revision of standards it was noted that a considerable number of draft revised standards were being submitted for adoption at Step 8. ⁶ The Commission <u>endorsed</u> the recommendations and conclusions of the Executive Committee in regard to the need for flexibility in adjusting to problems not foreseen in the Medium-Term Objectives and for urgent work on some specific microbiological concerns.⁷
- 10. The Commission <u>agreed</u> that work on biotechnology, including safety, labelling and nutrition aspects, being undertaken by relevant Codex Committees should be co-ordinated by the Executive Committee and that no new Committee would need to be established. Support was expressed for the initiative of holding a second Joint FAO/WHO Consultation on safety of food produced by biotechnology. The Commission <u>noted</u> the initiatives of OECD in the area of biotechnology and was assured that contact was maintained with that organization in order to avoid duplication of efforts.
- 11. With regard to the programme area on "Participation", the Commission <u>welcomed</u> proposals to hold sessions, especially of General Subject Committees in developing countries or in the Headquarters of the parent organizations so as to facilitate attendance by developing countries.
- 12. The Commission <u>approved</u> the strategic planning approach for implementing the Medium-Term Plan. It <u>approved</u> the Project Plans[§] submitted to it and <u>agreed</u> to also include work on aflatoxins. The Commission <u>requested</u> the relevant Committees to take immediate action as required in respect of the Project Plans.

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE URUGUAY ROUND OF MULTILATERAL TRADE NEGOTIATIONS (Agenda Item 5)

(A) WORKING ARRANGEMENTS BETWEEN THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION AND THE WORLD TRADE ORGANIZATION⁹

⁴ ALINORM 95/5 and ALINORM 95/5, Revised (page 4 only).

⁵ ALINORM 95/6.

⁶ See Item 11 of the Agenda.

- 13. The Commission <u>noted</u> the recommendations made by the 41st Session of the Executive Committee on the orientation of Codex activities in the perspective of the WTO Sanitary and Phytosanitary (SPS) and Technical Barriers to Trade (TBT) Agreements and the action taken so far in this area, and the views of the 42nd Session of the Executive Committee¹⁰. The Commission also <u>noted</u> that in order for Codex recommendations in the area of chemical contamination and food safety in general to be of use under the SPS Agreement, they would continue to be reviewed regularly on the basis of scientific evaluation.
- 14. The Commission <u>noted</u> the specific provisions of the SPS and TBT Agreements to facilitate their implementation by developing countries, and also that regional workshops were being organized in cooperation with WTO to explain the privileges and obligations under the Agreements for member countries.

- 15. The Commission <u>noted with satisfaction</u> the working arrangements which had been established between WTO and itself. There was general consensus on the need for Codex to retain its own objectives and procedures while co-operating closely with WTO, in order to avoid duplication of work and to optimize resource utilization.
- 16. The general recommendations contained in paragraphs 5 and 6 of the working paper were <u>endorsed</u> in principle and the Commission <u>requested</u> the Codex Committee on General Principles to develop guidance on the modalities to be used for the implementation of these recommendations. The Commission <u>called upon</u> WTO, FAO and WHO to pursue their efforts to develop the awareness of governments as to their obligations and to facilitate the implementation of the Agreements, especially by developing countries.

(B) ACCEPTANCE OF CODEX STANDARDS IN RELATION TO THE SPS AND TBT AGREEMENT¹¹

- 17. The Commission expressed its appreciation for the paper which examined the present system of notification by Member governments of the acceptance, in its varied specified forms, of Codex standards; explored the relationship between Codex acceptances and the new disciplines provided by the SPS and the TBT Agreements; and considered proposals on developing a revised system of notification by Member governments of their use or otherwise of Codex standards and related texts which would meet the needs of Codex Members and might also meet the needs of the World Trade Organization (WTO) Members under the SPS and TBT Agreements.
- 18. In examining the implications of the WTO Agreements the Commission noted that the new role for Codex standards and related texts is a significant recognition of the importance of the work of the Commission, the international standing of the Codex standards and related texts and the role they play in furthering international harmonization and facilitating international

⁷ ALINORM 95/4, paras. 4 and 5

⁸ ALINORM 95/6, Appendix II

⁹ ALINORM 95/7 Part 1 (Revised)

¹⁰ ALINORM 95/4, paras. 12-16.

trade. In regard to the current revised approaches to some commodity standards, it was suggested that the Commission may need to accord more importance on the objective in the Statutes of ensuring fair practices in the food trade so that words, including quality and trade descriptions, if used in international trade, would have internationally consistent and clearly understood meanings.

19. The Commission <u>agreed</u> in principle to revise the form of notification of acceptance by Codex Members of Codex standards to include information about the use of Codex standards and related texts, to meet the needs of Codex Members and also the needs of the WTO Members under the SPS Agreement and to make consequential revisions to the Guidelines for the Acceptance Procedure for Codex Standards.

20. The Commission further <u>agreed</u> that:

- The revision be taken up as a high priority by the Committee on General Principles under Item 1b of the Medium Term Programme of Work - Adoption of improved acceptance procedures.
- The Committee on General Principles should also consider whether further minor revision of the section on Acceptance of Codex Standards in the General Principles of the Codex Alimentarius might be needed.
- The Committee on General Principles should develop the format of a revised notification scheme, with assistance from the Secretariat, to report to the 44th Session of the Executive Committee and the 22nd Session of the Codex Alimentarius Commission in 1997, after consultation with Members of the Commission, on the format and substance of the proposed requirements. The Committee should also advise on priorities and a time-frame for Members reporting under the revised notification scheme.
- 21. The Commission <u>agreed</u> to refer the question of which Codex standards and related texts have major trade impact to the Regional Coordinating Committees which would report to the next sessions of the Executive Committee and the Commission. The Commission <u>noted</u> that the Regional Coordinating Committees will need guidance from the Secretariat on this matter.
- 22. Bearing in mind that until a new scheme is ready, Members should continue to notify acceptance of Codex standards to the Secretariat under the current scheme. The Commission also <u>agreed</u> to remind Members:
 - of their existing obligations under the General Principles and the Guidelines for the Acceptance Procedure for Codex Standards to respond to the Secretariat on every issue of new of amended standards, including giving detailed responses as to local requirements where Codex standards are not formally accepted, and the reasons for those differences; and

¹¹ ALINORM 95/7 - Part 2 introduced by Ms. Gae Pincus (Australia).

 of the need to keep this information up to date when national laws or practices are later changed.

CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS TO BASE CODEX STANDARDS AND OTHER RECOMMENDATIONS ON SCIENTIFIC PRINCIPLES AND THE EXTENT TO WHICH OTHER FACTORS NEED TO BE TAKEN INTO ACCOUNT (Agenda Item 6)

- 23. The Commission examined the paper¹² summarizing the background of the recommendations by the Executive Committee at its 41st Session (June, 1994) to set out four statements of principle which confirmed the pre-eminent role of science in Codex decision-making processes while allowing for other factors to be taken into account.
- 24. The Commission had a lengthy and exhaustive debate on the recommendations by the Executive Committee, including all the four statements of principle contained in Paragraph 20 of the paper. The Delegation of Spain, on behalf of the member countries of the European Community, submitted at the session a proposal to amend these statements as follows¹³:
 - 1. The food standards, guidelines and other recommendations of Codex Alimentarius shall be based on the principle of [sound] scientific analysis and evidence, involving a through review of all relevant information, in order that the standards assure the-protection of consumers' health and the quality and safety of the food supply.
 - 2. When elaborating and deciding upon food standards Codex Alimentarius will have regard, where appropriate, to other legitimate factors relevant for the [health protection of] consumers and for the promotion of fair practices in food trade, assessed in a transparent manner.
 - 3. In this regard it is noted that food labelling <u>can</u> play an important role in furthering [both of] these objectives.
 - 4. Fourth paragraph deleted.

25. The Commission overwhelmingly <u>confirmed</u> that Codex standards and other texts should be based on the principle of sound science. The wording of the fourth statement was also discussed extensively but inconclusively by a working group. Following intensive discussions on proposed amendments the Commission <u>adopted</u> the four statements of principles as originally drafted (Appendix 2) for the guidance of the work of Codex. Spain, on behalf of the Member Countries of the European Community, expressed its opposition to the Commission's decision.

¹² ALINORM 95/8.

¹³ The Commission did not accept the presentation of a proposal from the Commission of the European Community during discussion under Item 6 because a point of order was raised by the Delegation of the United States with regard to the fact that Observers may not submit proposals. The Spanish Delegation asked the Secretariat of the Commission whether it had received the document which the Commission of the European Community had wished to submit as a proposal to the Session. The Commission was informed that the said document had not been received officially by the Secretariat of the Codex Alimentarius Commission.

26. In order to strengthen the role of science in the Codex decision-making process, the Commission <u>asked</u> the Secretariat to draw the attention of the Directors-General of **FAO** and **WHO** to the Commission's desire to increase transparency in the working procedures of expert panels, specifically **JECFA** and **JMPR**, including procedures for the selection of experts, declaration of interest, and assurance of adequate geographical representation of experts.

RISK ASSESSMENT/RISK ANALYSIS IN CODEX: RECOMMENDATIONS OF A JOINT FAO/WHO EXPERT CONSULTATION¹⁴ (Agenda Item 7)

- 27. The 42nd Session of the Executive Committee¹⁵ considered the report of the Joint FAO/WHO Expert Consultation on the Application of Risk Analysis to Food Standards Issues, which was held in Geneva, Switzerland from 13–17 March 1995. The Consultation had defined risk analysis terms, reviewed current practices in the CAC and FAO/WHO committees and addressed the issues on risk assessment of chemical and biological agents in food and the problems related to uncertainty and variability in risk analysis. Subsequent to the Consultation, FAO and WHO suggested a number of minor modifications to these definitions, based on existing definitions in the wider risk analysis context. The efforts of other international organizations in the elaboration of similar definitions, and the importance of eliminating conflict between these definitions, were also stressed.
- 28. The Commission expressed its appreciation to FAO and WHO for holding the Consultation and endorsed the recommendations arising from the Consultation in principle, especially in regard to the importance of further work on the review of methodology and guidelines currently used for predicting dietary intake, particularly on a regional basis. It noted that there was need for further clarification of terms and definitions used for risk analysis and asked that the proposal contained in Annex V of ALINORM 95/9 be circulated for government comments. It was decided to draw the attention of governments to amendments proposed for the terms risk communication (to include explicit reference to consumers) and to risk analysis, risk assessment, (to include reference to severity of effects) and risk characterization (to include reference to probability). The importance of transparency in communicating with consumers was also stressed.
- 29. The Commission also <u>recommended</u> further work to address risk management, risk communication and defining the roles and responsibilities of the different bodies involved in the risk analysis process as well as on uncertainty and variability in risk analysis in relation to standard setting and food regulation.
- 30. The Commission <u>agreed</u> that the Report and recommendations of the Consultation should be examined by relevant Codex Committees especially the Committee on General Principles so that the risk analysis concept would be incorporated into the Codex procedures and in the list of terms and definitions for Codex purposes. The Commission <u>noted</u> the need for taking into consideration the problems of developing countries in regard to implementing the risk analysis approach into their food regulations.

COOPERATION WITH THE UNITED NATIONS ECONOMIC COMMISSION FOR EUROPE (UNECE) IN THE ELABORATION OF WORLDWIDE STANDARDS FOR FRESH FRUITS AND VEGETABLES¹⁶ (Agenda Item 8)

- 31. The Commission recalled that at its 20th Session the request of the Codex Committee on Tropical Fresh Fruits and Vegetables (CCTFFV) to change its terms of reference to cover the standardization of all fresh produce was postponed pending consultations between the Codex, FAO and UNECE to arrive at a workable solution to the coordination of standardization activities between Codex and the Working Party on Standardization of Perishable Produce and Quality Development of UNECE. The 42th Session of the Executive Committeeth had noted the opinion of the United Nations Under-Secretary for Legal Affairs that UNECE as a "regional commission" did not have the authority, unless explicitly so authorized by the Economic and Social Council, to establish subsidiary bodies which are anticipated to elaborate worldwide standards or which are instituted to transfer regional standards into worldwide standards.
- 32. The Commission <u>adopted</u> a revision proposed by the Executive Committee to the Terms of Reference¹⁸ of the Codex Committee on Tropical Fresh Fruits and Vegetables to cover the standardization of all fresh fruits and vegetables by deleting the word "Tropical" throughout. Several delegations opposed this decision. The Commission <u>stressed</u> that the newly named Codex Committee on Fresh Fruits and Vegetables should continue to cooperate and coordinate with the UNECE towards the elaboration of harmonized standards without duplication of effort, and <u>noted</u> that the present decision should allow the Codex Alimentarius Commission to use UNECE standards and recommend them for worldwide application. The Secretariat and the Executive Committee were <u>requested</u> to monitor work in this area, particularly as regards duplication.

CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS TO THE PROCEDURAL MANUAL OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION¹⁹ (Agenda Item 9)

RULES OF PROCEDURE

• Rule IV.6 - Quorum

33. The Commission <u>decided</u> to retain the present quorum specified in Rule IV.6. However, recognizing the difficulties to reach a quorum, the need to maintain the rights of all Members, the need to encourage greater participation and the necessity to proceed efficiently with its work, the Commission requested the Committee on General Principles and Coordinating Committees to study mechanisms which might facilitate the expression of consensus.

• Rule II - Officers

¹⁴ ALINORM 95/9 and WHO/FNU/FOS/95.3

¹⁵ ALINORM 95/4, paras. 25-28

34. As the quorum was constituted, the Commission <u>agreed</u> to amend Rule II - Officers, as proposed in order to clarify the role of the Chairman, Vice-Chairmen and Coordinators. The amended Rule will be submitted to the Directors-General of FAO and WHO for their approval as required by Rule XIII.1 of the Rules of Procedure.

GUIDELINES FOR CODEX COMMITTEES AND GENERAL PRINCIPLES OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS

35. The Commission <u>adopted</u> the amendements to the Guidelines for Codex Committees in order to clarify the relationship between commodity and general committees, and other working arrangements.

The Commission noted that specific attention should be paid to the way in which referral from one Committee to another should be organized. It <u>adopted</u> an amendment to the General Principles of the Codex Alimentarius to emphasize the need for transparency in the process of revision of its standards and related texts. The Commission also <u>adopted</u> a number of changes to the English version of the Procedural Manual to remove gender-specific expressions.

- 36. Regarding para. 7 (a) of the Guidelines for Codex Committees, the Commission was assured that the provisional agendas of the Codex Committees and Coordinating Committees will be prepared in close cooperation between FAO and WHO.
- 37. The amendments to the Procedural Manual are attached as Appendix 3.

CONSIDERATION OF DRAFT AND PROPOSED DRAFT STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS FOR GENERAL APPLICATION (Agenda Item 10)²⁰

38. Appendix 4 to this report contains a list of Draft and Proposed Draft Standards and Related Texts for General Application considered by the Commission at Steps 8 and 5 respectively. <u>Decisions</u> of the Commission in regard to the adoption of texts are tabulated in this Appendix. The remainder of this part of the report contains certain specific observations on the texts under consideration.

FOOD ADDITIVES²¹

- Draft Preamble to the Codex General Standard for Food Additives²²
- 39. The Commission asked the Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants to reconsider and examine those provisions related to the carry-over of food additives into foods.
- Amendments to the International Numbering System

¹⁶ ALINORM 95/10

¹⁷ ALINORM 95/4, para. 29-32.

¹⁸ CAC/LIM 8

¹⁹ ALINORM 95/14.

40. The Commission, after discussions and on the basis of a majority decision, decided to close the list of speakers and <u>allocated</u> INS Number 407(a) to Processed *Eucheuma* Seaweed (thickener/stabilizer). The Commission <u>noted</u> the reservations the Delegation of Chile expressed concerning the procedure used in adopting the allocated number which it considered to be contrary to the Rules of Procedure of the Commission. The Commission also <u>allocated</u> INS number 956 to *alitame* (sweetener). It noted that a previous proposal to assign INS Number 275 to *calcium behenate* had been withdrawn.

PESTICIDE RESIDUS²³

- Maximum Residue Limits

41. The Delegation of Spain expressed reservations on certain MRLs for parathion, phorate, cyfluthrin, flusilazole and profenofos at Step 8 and for piperonyl butoxide, triazophos and benalaxyl at Step 5/8 as they were either different from those of Spain or the EC, or too high in relation to the ADIs. The Delegation of Germany expressed reservations on Part 1 and Part 2 of ALINORM 95/24A-Addendum, due to health concerns of certain MRLs.

- General comments on the work of the Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues

42. The Commission also noted the opinions of some delegations that the shortened meeting of the Committee could have serious implications for its work taking into consideration its heavy workload. The Commission <u>encouraged</u> the development of guidelines for minimum data requirements for establishing MRLs and Good Agricultural Practice (GAP) and <u>welcomed</u> the revision of existing guidelines for predicting the dietary intake of pesticide residues.

RESIDUES OF VETERINARY DRUGS24

- Draft Maximum Residue Limits for 5 Growth Hormones at Step 8

- 43. The Commission was split into two opinions: (1) in favour of adopting these MRLs at Step 8 without delay; and (2) in favour of postponing the consideration to the next session of the Commission awaiting an international conference organized by the EC scheduled later this year to study this issue.
- 44. After a lengthy debate on the issue in relation to whether to base a decision on currently available scientific evidence or to take into account factors other than health concerns, the Delegation of Spain, on behalf of the member countries of EU, proposed a roll-call vote on the

²⁰ ALINORM 95/21 - Part I

²¹ ALINORM 95/12; ALINORM 95/12A; ALINORM 95/21 - Part I, Addendum 5 (CRD)

²² ALINORM 95/12, Appendix II

²³ ALINORM 95/24; ALINORM 95/24A; ALINORM 95/24A-Addendum; ALINORM 95/21 - Part 1; ALINORM 95/21 - Part I, Addendum 6 (CRD)

adjournment of debate on the adoption of certain growth-promoting hormones at Step 8. The result of the vote was:

In favour of Algeria; Austria; Belgium; Cyprus; Denmark; Finland; France; adjournment: Germany; Greece; India; Iraq; Ireland; Italy; Kenya; Latvia; Malta;

Netherlands; Norway; Poland; Portugal; Romania; Russian

Federation; Slovak Republic; Spain; Sweden; Switzerland; Turkey;

United Kingdom

Against adjournment: Australia; Botswana; Brazil; Canada; Chile; China; Costa Rica;

Egypt; Ghana; Hungary; Indonesia; Islamic Republic of Iran; Israel;

Japan; Lebanon; Malaysia; Mexico; New Zealand; Nigeria;

Paraguay; Peru; Philippines; Qatar; Republic of Korea; Saudi Arabia; Singapore; South Africa; Sudan; Tanzania; Thailand; United States

of America

Abstaining: Burkina Faso; Cuba; Uganda; Senegal; Zimbabwe

Tally: 28 votes in favour; 31 votes against; 5 abstentions

Result: The motion for adjournment failed.

45. A majority of Member countries voted to proceed by the use of a secret ballot, as requested by the Delegation of the United States. As a result of the secret ballot, the Commission <u>adopted</u> the MRLs for growth-promoting hormones (33 votes in favour of adoption, 29 votes against adoption, and 7 abstentions).

46. The Observer of the European Community commented that it was regrettable that this important and far-reaching decision was made by a secret ballot which was contradictory to the Commission's decision to increase transparency. He further noted that it cast doubts on the validity and value of Codex work and standards and that consequences would be grave including the European Community's rethinking of participation in Codex work. The Delegations of The Netherlands, Sweden, and Finland stressed that the latter statement by the Observer was made on behalf of the European Commission but not on behalf of the European Union or its member countries and dissociated themselves from the latter statement. The Delegation of Spain, on behalf of the European Union, recalled the right of the Commission of the European Community to make as many comments as it felt necessary as an observer, but also dissociated itself from the latter statement. The Delegation of the United Kingdom dissociated itself from the entire statement.

- Draft Maximum Residue Limits for Bovine Somatotropins at Step 8

²⁴ ALINORM 95/31 and Corr.1; ALINORM 95/21, Part I, Annex I

47. The Delegation of Spain, on behalf of the Member States of the European Union, proposed a roll-call vote on the adjournment of debate on the adoption of maximum residue limits for bovine somatotropins at Step 8. The result of the vote was as follows:

In favour of Algeria; Austria; Belgium; Burkina Faso; Cameroon; Cyprus; adjournment: Denmark; Finland; France; Germany; Greece; Guinea; Hungary;

India; Ireland; Islamic Republic of Iran; Italy; Latvia; Lebanon; Lithuania; Luxembourg; Malta; Netherlands; Norway; Poland; Portugal; Republic of Korea; Romania; Russia; Slovak Rep; Spain;

Sweden; Switzerland

Against adjournment: Argentina; Australia; Brazil; Canada; Cape; Verde; Chile; China;

Cuba; Egypt; Ghana; Indonesia; Iraq; Israel; Japan; Kenya; Malaysia;

Mexico; New Zealand; Nigeria; Pakistan; Peru; Saudi Arabia;

Singapore; South Africa; Sudan; Tanzania; Thailand; Uganda; USA;

UK; Zimbabwe

Abstaining: Botswana; Ecuador; Lesotho; Philippines; Senegal; Tunisia

Tally: 33 votes in favour; 31 votes against; 6 abstentions

Result: The motion for adjournment passed.

48. The Commission <u>adjourned</u> the debate until its next sitting. The Chairperson of the Codex Committee on Residues of Veterinary Drugs in Foods expressed his disappointment at the Commission's decision to postpone the debate.

FOOD LABELLING²⁵

- Proposed Draft Guidelines for the Use of Health and Nutrition Claims, including the Table of Conditions for Claims for Nutrient Contents

49. The Commission emphasized the importance of keeping under regular review provisions relating to nutrition claims in the light of new scientific information including aspects of fats and oils and <u>noted</u> that further work would be necessary on the Guidelines, inclusive of the Table of Conditions for Claims and Nutrient Contents, while recognizing that the present Conditions for Claims resulted from thorough consideration by the Codex Committee on Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses. The Commission <u>adopted</u> the proposed draft Guidelines at Step 5, but requested the Committee on Food Labelling and the Committee on Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses to consider all comments made by Member countries for re-evaluation of the Table of Conditions at their next sessions.

²⁵ ALINORM 95/22; ALINORM 95/26, Appendix III; ALINORM 95/21 - Part I; ALINORM 95/21 -Part I, Addendum 2 and Addendum 2/1 (CRD)

FOOD HYGIENE²⁶

- Draft (Regional) Code of Hygienic Practice for the Preparation and Sale of Street-Vended Foods Latin America and the Caribbean
- Proposed Draft (Regional) Code of Hygiene Practice for Street Foods Africa
- 50. The Commission <u>noted</u> that these Codes would need to be amended in the near future to incorporate the new approach contained in the revised General Principles of Food Hygiene and the use of the Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point (HACCP) System.
- Proposed Draft (Revised) International Code of Practice: General Principles of Food Hygiene
- 51. The Commission <u>noted</u> that the Draft (Revised) Code considered risk analysis and the HACCPbased approach in the revised Code and that relevant provisions in other Codes would be amended in light of this Code.

METHODS OF ANALYSIS AND SAMPLING27

- Recommended Protocol for the Design, Conduct and Interpretation of Method Performance Studies and Harmonized Protocol for the Proficiency Testing of (Chemical) Analytical Laboratories
- 52. The Delegation of France considered that adoption at Step 8 of the two Protocols was not timely because their content was not in conformity with ISO texts.
- Methods of Analysis and Sampling Endorsed by the Codex Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling
- 53. The Commission <u>noted</u> that the references to AOAC methods were unchanged in the 16th Edition of the Official Methods of Analysis. The Commission also <u>noted</u> that the Committee had recognized that both SI and other units were in use in Member countries.

IMPORT/EXPORT INSPECTION AND CERTIFICATION SYSTEMS²⁸

- Draft Principles for Food Import and Export Inspection and Certification
- 54. The Commission <u>deleted</u> the phrase "or risk of contamination" at the end of paragraph 9 of the Principles, and asked the Committee to give further consideration to the implications of this phrase.

CONSIDERATION OF DRAFT AND PROPOSED DRAFT STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS FOR SPECIFIC COMMODITIES²⁰ (Agenda Item 11)

55. Appendix 4 to this report contains a list of Draft and Proposed Draft Standards and Related Texts for Specific Commodities considered by the Commission at Steps 8 and 5 respectively. <u>Decisions</u> of the Commission in regard to the adoption of texts are tabulated in this Appendix. The remainder of this part of the report contains certain specific observations on the texts under consideration.

56. The Commission considered the status of trade-related quality provisions of an advisory nature, which had been transferred to "advisory" appendices in several standards. It <u>confirmed</u> that only essential aspects subject to acceptance should be included in the main body of the standard. It further agreed that, as the provisions included in the annex were not subject to Codex acceptance, a statement to this effect should be retained at the beginning of the standards under consideration, as follows:

Appendix 1 to this standard contains provisions which are not intended to be applied within the meaning of the acceptance provisions of Section 4.A (I)(b) of the General Principles of the Codex Alimentarius.

- 57. The Commission also noted that the advisory provisions constituted a "standard" under the definitions in the TBT Agreement. The Commission agreed to request the Committee on General Principles to consider this important issue.
- 58. The Commission <u>agreed</u> that Provisions concerning Food Additives should be included as an integral part of the standards until such time as the General Standard for Food Additives was finalized. In the meantime, food additive provisions should continue to be endorsed in accordance with present procedures.

FISH AND FISHERY PRODUCTS31

59. The Commission recalled that the standards had been revised in accordance with the recommendations of the Commission for the simplification of Codex standards, especially through the transfer of quality provisions of an advisory nature to the codes of Practice, currently under review.

- Draft Standard for Quick Frozen Shrimps or Prawns

60. The Commission noted the concern expressed concerning the use of sulphites and agreed that the Committee might reconsider this question.

- Draft Standard for Canned Crab

²⁶ ALINORM 95/13 and Corr. (English only); ALINORM 95/36, Appendix II; ALINORM 95/28, Appendix II.

²⁷ ALINORM 95/23; ALINORM 95/21 - Part I, Addendum 4

²⁸ ALINORM 95/30; ALINORM 95/30A; ALINORM 95/21 - Part I, Addendum 1

²⁹ ALINORM 95/21, Part II

61. The Commission amended the Scope of the standard to include other edible parts of crab so as to reflected current trade practices.

- Other Matters

62. The Commission <u>invited</u> countries wishing to include additional species to the Definitions for Shrimps and Prawns; Sardines; Tuna and Bonito to submit relevant data on taxonomy, resources and processing technology to the Committee on Fish and Fishery Products. It also <u>asked</u> the Committee to give further consideration to the size designation of canned shrimps. The Commission <u>agreed</u> that the Accelerated Procedure should be used for the addition of species to the relevant standards.

FATS AND OILS32

- Draft Standard for Palm Olein and Draft Standard for Palm Stearin

63. The Commission noted that a number of technical comments had been made and that the Standards would ultimately be integrated into the General Standard for Named Vegetable Oils. This would allow for further consideration of the issues raised. The Delegation of Germany did not support the adoption of these two standards.

- Proposed Draft Standard for Olive Oil and Olive Pomace Oils

64. The Commission noted amendments might still be proposed by the International Olive Oil Council and that these would to be taken into account when finalizing the standard.

- Proposed Draft Standard for Products Sold as an Alternative to Ghee

65. The Commission noted the objections raised in relation to the need for and the name of the standard. It was suggested to retain and update the current standards for related products instead of combining them. The Commission <u>returned</u> the Proposed Draft Standard to Step 3 for further consideration by the Committee on Fats and Oils.

- Proposed Draft Standard for Fat Spreads

66. The Commission <u>endorsed</u> the recommendation of the Executive Committee that the Committee on Milk and Milk Products should retain responsibility for the provisions concerning butter and cooperate with the Committee on Fats and Oils in the elaboration of the Fat Spreads Standard. In view of a number of objections raised to the scope and definitions, the Commission <u>agreed</u> that the standard should be returned to Step 3 for further consideration.

³⁰ ALINORM 95/21, Part II, Addendum 7 (CAC/LIM 2)

³¹ ALINORM 95/18, ALINORM 95/21 - Part II; ALINORM 95/21 - Part II, Addendum 2

³² ALINORM 95/14, ALINORM 95/21 - Part II; ALINORM 95/21 - Part II, Addenda 1 and 1/1

- Proposed Draft Standard for Mayonnaise

67. The Commission <u>asked</u> the Committee on Fats and Oils to give careful consideration to the issues of fat content and the content of egg yolk.

- Proposed Draft Code of Practice for the Storage and Transport of Edible Oils and Fats in Bulk

68. The Commission noted objections of the Delegation of Malaysia to the present text, in view of its possible implications for international trade.

MILK AND MILK PRODUCTS33

69. The Commission noted that buffalo milk was commonly used as well as cow milk in various milk products and therefore asked that consideration might need to be given to this in the section concerning the labelling of milk other than cow milk. This matter was referred to the Committee on Milk and Milk Products.

- Draft Standard for Whey Powders

70. The Delegation of France expressed its reservation on the adoption of the standard, stating that the pH which distinguished whey powder from acid whey powder should be 5.8 rather than 5.1.

- Draft Standard for Edible Casein Products

71. The commission agreed to delete the word "acid" in square brackets in the Scope and to increase the maximum pH of caseinates from 7.5 to 8.0.

TROPICAL FRESH FRUITS AND VEGETABLES³⁴

- Litchi

72. The commission <u>agreed</u> that comments on the Provisions concerning Sizing (Section 3) would be considered by the Sixth Session of the Committee on Fresh Fruit and Vegetables.

- Avocado

73. The Commission <u>added</u> "Syn. *Persea gratissima* Gaertn" to the botanical description of the species, in order to take account of large avocado varieties.

- Mangosteen

 $^{^{\}rm 33}$ ALINORM 95/11; ALINORM 95/21 - Part II; ALINORM 95/21 - Part II, Addenda 5 and 5/1

³⁴ ALINORM 95/35; ALINORM 95/21 - Part II; ALINORM 95/21 - Part II, Addendum 4

74. The Commission <u>agreed</u> that comments related to Provisions on Hygiene (Section 8) would be considered by the 6th Session of the Codex Committee on Fresh Fruits and Vegetables.

CEREALS, PULSES, LEGUMES AND DERIVED PRODUCTS³⁵

75. The Delegation of France reserved its position on these Standards, stating that their optional provisions could be used as a reference for WTO³⁶ and that these provisions should therefore be reviewed with this approach in mind.

- Wheat Flour

76. The Delegations of Austria, Belgium, France, Germany, Greece and Italy reserved their position on sections 4.2.6 to 4.2.9 of the Standard. The Observer of the European Community opposed adoption.

- Edible Cassava Flour

77. The Commission <u>confirmed</u> that the Scope of the standard did not include cassava starch.

- Certain Pulses

78. The Delegation of Japan referred to the importance of developing guidelines for consumers on the processing and handling of pulses, especially in view of potentially high levels of cyanogenic glucosides.

- Guideline Level and Sampling Plan for Total Aflatoxins in Peanuts Intended for further Processing

79. The Commission was informed that the 27th Session of the Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants postponed the endorsement of the proposed guideline level, pending JECFA evaluation of aflatoxins B, G and M in February 1996. The commission adopted the text at Step 5, with the understanding that future work on the establishment of a guideline level will be handled through the Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants. The Delegations of France, Sweden and the United Kingdom reserved their positions on the level guoted in the text.

- Adjournment of the Committee on Cereals, Pulses and Legumes sine die.

80. The Commission concurred that the Committee be adjourned sine die.

FOODS FOR SPECIAL DIETARY USES37

81. The Commission adopted at Step 8 the Draft Standard for Formula Foods for Use in Very Low Energy Diets for Weight Reduction, with the understanding that provisions for vitamins and minerals should be subject to regular review.

SUGARS AND HONEY38

- Revised Codex Standard for Sugars and Honey

82. The Commission, <u>noting</u> that substantial late comments had been submitted for consideration, <u>adopted</u> the Draft Standards at Step 5, but not at Step 8. It <u>agreed</u> that further revision by the Host Secretariat should be carried out through correspondence.

Soups and Broths39

- Draft Revised Codex Standard for Bouillons and Consommés

83. The Commission <u>adopted</u> the Standard at Step 8 as proposed and <u>noted</u> that a revision of the Standard in light of late substantive comments would be initiated immediately. The Delegation of Germany expressed its reservation on the adoption of the Standard.

OTHER PRODUCTS

84. The Delegation of Sweden informed the Commission that the revision of the Standard for Edibles Ices had been initiated; however, as these products did not appear to be of relevance for international trade, it was suggested to discontinue work on the standard as well as the activities of the Committee. The Commission <u>agreed</u> that a study should be provided on the subject, for consideration by the next session of the Executive Committee.

CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS TO ELABORATE NEW STANDARDS AND/OR RELATED TEXTS⁴⁰ (Agenda Item 12)

- 85. The Commission <u>endorsed</u> the proposals made by the Executive Committee⁴¹ on the elaboration of new standards and or related texts at step 1, which were found to meet the Medium-Term Objective of the Commission and to be within the mandate of the Commission.
- 86. It also <u>noted</u> the recommendations made by the Executive Committee on items for which work should not be undertaken, including: the development of Guidelines for Consumer Education in Food Hygiene, and Consideration of Dietary Modelling.
- 87. Proposals were made by the delegations of Egypt, China and Iran for new work on: the evaluation of two sweeteners (Thaumatin and Monelline); plants and herbs for medicinal use; pesticide residues in honey; MRLs of pesticides and maximum levels of contaminants in fish and low-fat meat; foods for athletes; and on packaging. The Commission <u>noted</u> that plants and herbs for medicinal use were not within the mandate of the Commission. The Secretariat was asked to prepare a study on the matter of packaging for the consideration by the

 $^{^{35}}$ ALINORM 95/29; ALINORM 95/28 and Addendum; ALINORM 95/21 - Part II; ALINORM 95/21 -Part II, Addenda 3, 3/1 and 8

³⁶ See the discussion reported under Agenda Item 5 and ALINORM 95/7.

³⁷ ALINORM 95/26; ALINORM 95/21 - Part II

Executive Committee and the Commission's next sessions. The Commission <u>referred</u> the other proposals to the relevant Committees for consideration.

MATTERS ARISING FROM CODEX COMMITTEES (Agenda Item 13)

88. The Commission <u>noted</u> that these matters had been effectively dealt with by the Executive Committee⁴⁹ or else under previous items on the present Agenda. The Commission <u>regretted</u> that provision had not been made for a more in-depth consideration of the matters discussed by Regional Coordinating Committees.

CONFIRMATION OF CHAIRMANSHIP OF CODEX COMMITTEES4 (Agenda Item 14)

89. In accordance with Rule IX.10 of the Rules of Procedure, the Commission <u>confirmed</u> the Chairmanship of the Codex Committees hosted by Member governments, as listed in Appendix 5, and expressed its appreciation to the support provided by the respective Host Governments to its work.

OTHER BUSINESS (Item 15)

CONSUMER INVOLVEMENT IN THE WORK OF CODEX⁴⁵

90. The Commission regretted that it had insufficient time to consider in detail the valuable paper prepared by Consumers International.⁴⁶ It reiterated its strong support for greater consumer involvement in Codex matters, in particular it:

- <u>agreed</u> that this working paper should be considered by the next Session of the Committee on General Principles and that a paper on consumer involvement in Codex should be considered as a specific item early in the Agenda at the Commission's next Session;
- <u>agreed</u> to advise FAO/WHO that the presence of consumers and other organizations as observers in meetings of the Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee on Food Additives and the Joint FAO/WHO Meeting on Pesticide Residues would improve transparency of decision-making;
- noted that consumers' and other organizations would be invited to nominate potential
 experts for scientific panels, but that final decision on selection would remain the
 prerogative of the Directors-General of FAO and WHO in consultation with Member
 governments; and

³⁸ CL 1995/5 - S; ALINORM 95/21 - Part II; ALINORM 95/21 - Part II, Addenda 6, 6/1 and 6/2; CAC/LIM 12

³⁹ ALINORM 95/20; ALINORM 95/21 - Part II; ALINORM 95/21 - Part II, Addenda 9 and 9/1

⁴⁰ ALINORM 95/21 - Part 3

⁴¹ ALINORM 95/4, Appendix.

⁴² ALINORM 95/21 - Part 4.

⁴³ ALINORM 95/4, paras. 35–41

<u>recommended</u> that countries which had not yet established a national Codex
 Committee with consumer representation should do so as a matter of priority.

STATUS OF POTENTIAL EUROPEAN COMMUNITY MEMBERSHIP OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION47

91. The Commission noted the current status of the informal consultations with the European Commission to consider the legal implications of European Community membership and the modalities of its participation. Since only a preliminary request for membership had been made at this stage, whatever action might be taken in the future would be contingent on further information received from the European Community, especially on the essential question of competence.

STANDARDS FOR COCONUT PRODUCTS

92. The Commission noted that the Asia and Pacific Coconut Council had begun an extensive programme of standardization of coconut products. While encouraging the development of standards in this area, the Commission <u>agreed</u> that this work should be co-ordinated with its own work and asked that the matter be considered by the Regional Coordinating Committee for Asia.

DURATION OF COMMISSION SESSIONS

93. The Commission noted that the shortened Agenda for the present Session had been recommended by the 41st Session of the Executive Committee on an experimental basis. It expressed concern that the time allocated did not provide for adequate debate of all of the significant issues before the Commission, especially when many issues required extended debate in light of the new relevance of Codex standards within the context of the WTO Agreements. It requested the Executive Committee to take this into consideration when reviewing proposals for the Provisional Agenda and the time allocated for the commission's 22nd Session.

⁴⁴ ALINORM 95/14

⁴⁵ CAC 21/INF-2

⁴⁶ Consumers International stated that whilst frequent reference was made to transparency in Codex procedures and the necessity for consumers confidence in them, in Consumers International's opinion neither of these things had been improved by this Session, both in the conclusions reached and in the way in which some decisions were made.

⁴⁷ CAC 21/INF-3

APPENDICES

APPENDIX I LIST OF PARTICIPANTS LISTE DES PARTICIPANTS LISTA DE PARTICIPANTES¹

CHAIRMAN
PRESIDENT
PRESIDENTE

Professor F.G. Winarno
Secretary of National Research Council
Food Technology Development Centre
P.O. Box 61
Bogor
Indonesia

MEMBERS OF THE COMMISSION
MEMBRES DE LA COMMISSION
MIEMBROS DE LA COMISION

ALGERIA ALGERIE ARGELIA

The heads of delegations are listed first; alternates, advisers and consultants are listed in alphabetical order.
 Les chefs de délégation figurent en tête et les suppléants, conseillers et consultants sont énuméres par ordre alphabétique.
 Figuran en primer lugar los Jefes de las delegaciones; los Suplentes, Asesores y Consultores aparecen por orden alfabético.

Nasreddine RIMOUCHE

Conseiller

Représentant Permanent Adjoint

Ambassade d'Algérie

Via Barnaba Oriani 26

Rome

Italy

El-Mounir BOUABSA

Chef de la Division Technique

CACQE

2 Rue des Frères Ziata

El-Dovradia

Alger

Algeria

Mimoun BOURAS

Directeur de la qualité

Ministère du Commerce

Palais du Gouvernement

Alger

Algeria

Mme Ouahiba GHALEM

Sous Directeur de la Normalisation

Ministère de l'Agriculture

Route des Quatre Canons

Alger

Algérie

ARGENTINA

ARGENTINE

Sra. Ileana DI GIOVAN

Representante Permanente ante la FAO

Embajada de la República Argentina

P.zza dell'Esquilino 2

00185 Rome

Italy

S.ra Maria Ines JAIME-BURMEISTER

Embajada de la República Argentina

P.zza dell'Esquilino 2

Rome

Italy

AUSTRALIA AUSTRALIE

Digby GASCOINE

Director

Development and Evaluation Division

Australian Quarantine & Inspection Service

(AQIS)

P.O. Box 858

Canberra, ACT 2601

Australia

Gordon BURCH

Scientific Director

Australian National Food Authority

P.O. Box 1786

Canberra ACT 2610

Australia

Andrew PEARSON

Counsellor (Agriculture and Minerals)

Embassy of the Commonwealth of Australia

Via Alessandria 215

00198 Rome

Italy

AUSTRIA

AUTRICHE

Arnulf SATTLER

Bundesministerium für Gesundheit und

Konsumentenschutz

Radetzkystrasse 2

A-1030 Wien

Austria

Martin GRESSL

Dipl. Ing.

Ministry of Economic Affairs

Stubenring 1

A-1011 Wien

Austria

Mrs. Hedwig WÖGERBAUER

Oberrätin

Federal Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry Abteilung III 3 Stubenring 12 A-1010 Wien Austria

Ernst ZIMMERL

Permanent Representative of Austria to FAO Permanent Representation of the Republic of Austria Via Flaminia, 158 00196 Rome Italy

BANGLADESH

Mirza Tasadduq Hussain BEG Economic Counsellor Alternate Permanent Representative to FAO Embassy of Bangladesh Via A. Bertoloni 14 Rome Italy

BELGIUM BELGIQUE BELGICA

Charles CREMER
Inspecteur principal - Chef de Service
Ministère de la Santé Publique
Inspection des denrées alimentaires
Cité Administrative de l'Etat
Quartier Vésale
B1010 Bruxelles
Belgique

Théo BIEBAUT
Premier Conseiller
Ministère des Affaires Economiques
Rue du Commerce 44
B1040 Bruxelles
Belgique

Walter COOLS
Director

Public Affairs
Puratos NV
Industrialaan 25
1702 Groot - Bÿarden
Belgique

Mme Patricia DYKMANS
Reponsable Environnement
DANONE
Av. de Broqueville 12 B2
B1150 Bruxelles
Belgique

Guido KAYAERT

European Regulatory and Environmental Affairs Manager Nestlé Coordination Centre Birminghamstraat 221 B1070 Bruxelles Belgique

Mme Isabelle ROZE
Assistant Reglementation Alimentaire
FIA
Av. de Cortenbergh 172, Bte. 7
B1010 Bruxelles
Belgique

Gabriël YSEBAERT Ingenieur principale Ministère de l'Agriculture Manhattan Office Tower Av. du Boulevard 21 1210 Bruxelles Belgium

BOLIVIA BOLIVIE

Ms. Moira PAZ-ESTENSSORO Embajadora Representante Permanente Ministerio de Relaciones Exteriores Embajada de la República de Bolivia Via Toscana 30 00187 Rome

Italy

Roberto LEMA TRIGO

Consejero

Representante Permanente Alterno

Embajada de la República de Bolivia

Via Sardegna 17

00187 Rome

Italy

BOTSWANA

John Katatu MULWA

Deputy Permanent Secretary

Director of Health Services

Ministry of Health

Private Bag 0038

Gaborone

Botswana

Ms. Segametsi Ditshebo MARUAPULA

Chief Nutritionist

Ministry of Health

P.O. Box 992

Gaborone

Botswana

BRAZIL

BRESIL

BRASIL

Carlos A. FERREIRA GUIMARAES

Counsellor

Embassy of Brazil

Via della Conciliazione 22/III

00139 Rome

Italy

Aurélio Wander C. BASTOS

Secretário de Direito Economico

Ministerio da Justiça - SDE 5° Andar

Esplanada dos Ministerios CEP 70058-900

Brasília, D.F.

Brazil

Julio Cezar ALVAREZ
Brazilian Animal Health Institute (SINDAN)
Rua Bueno Brandao N° 444, Apto. 33
SP SP 04509-021 Brazil

Léo F. BICK
Technical Director
Brazilian Food Manufacturers Association (ABIA)
Av. Brig. Faria Lima
2003, 11A Sao Paulo
Brazil

Ms. Lúcia Helena BREGAGNOLO CALDAS Divisao de Alimentos/SVS Chefe do Serviço de Normas Internacionais Ministerio da Saúde Esplanada dos Ministerios Bloco G - Sala 837 - CEP 70058-900 Brasília, D.F. Brazil

Paulo Cesar Rodrigues DA COSTA Industry Representative National Confederation of Industry Rua Marques de Sapucaí 200-4° Andar - CEP 20215-000 Rio de Janeiro Brazil

Ms. Regina Glória LANGSDORFF Industry Representative National Confederation of Industry Av. Maria Coelho Aguiar 215-BL F-6°-Andar CEP 05805-000 Sao Paulo - SP Brazil

Fernando José MARRONI DE ABREU
Alternate Permanent Representative of Brazil to FAO
Ministry of Foreign Affairs
Piazza Navona 14
Rome
Italy

Ms. Maria Aparecida MARTINELLI Secretaria Executiva Comité Codex Alimentarius do Brasil INMETRO Ministerio da Industria, Comércio e Turismo SAS Q02 Lote I-A, CEP 70070-900 Brasília, D.F. Brazil

Adauto LIMA RODRIGUES
Coordenador Asuntos Codex - Secretaria de
Defesa Agropecuaria - SDA/MAARA
Ministerio da Agricultura
Esplanada dos Ministerios
Anexo B do Ministerio de Agricultura
S/408 Brasília, D.F.
Brazil

Pedro SIMÃO FILHO

Coordinator of Technology and Legislation Commission Brazilian Food Manufacturers Association - (ABIA) Ave. Brigadeiro Faria Lima 2003-11° A. - São Paulo, CEP - 01451-001 Brazil

BURKINA FASO

Oumarou YANKINE

Chargé de la normalisation, du contrôle de la qualité et des instruments de mesures Ministère du Commerce, de l'Industrie et de l'Artisanat B.P. 19 Ouagadougou Burkina Faso

BURUNDI

Anselme BANKAMBONA Représentant Permanent Adjoint Ambassade de la République du Burundi Corso d'Italia 83 00198 Rome Italy

CAMEROON CAMEROUN CAMERUN Paul Felix BANGOWEMI
Director of Agricultural Project
Ministry of Agriculture
Yaoundé
Cameroon

Thomas YANGA
Deputy Permanent Reprensentative to FAO
Ambassade de la République du Cameroun
Corso Italia 83
00198 Rome
Italy

CANADA

Anne MACKENZIE
Director General
Food Inspection Directorate
Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada
Ottawa, Ontario K1A 0YN
Canada

Randy BENOIT
Director
Policy Analysis
Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada
59 Camelot Drive
Nepean, Ontario K1A 0Y9
Canada

Ron BURKE A/Director

Bureau of Food Regulatory, International and Interagency Affairs

Health Canada

Room 200

Tunney's Pasture

Ottawa, Ontario K1A 0L2

Canada

Robert DE VALK

President

De Valk Consulting Inc.

500-2319 St. Laurent Blvd.

Ottawa, Ontario K1G 4K6

Canada

James A. DRUM
Observer, Canadian Food Industry
42 Overlea Blvd., Suite 100
Toronto, Ontario M4H 1B8
Canada

Sol W. GUNNER
Director General
Food Directorate, Health Protection Branch
Health Canada
H.P.B. Building, Room 103
Tunney's Pasture
Ottawa, Ontario K1A 0L2
Canada

Roy HARWOOD Director, Technical Services Christie Brown & Co. Toronto M8V 1A3 Canada

Robert MILLS
Technical Trade Coordinator
Inspection Directorate
Department of Fisheries and Oceans
200 Kent Street
Ottawa, Ontario K1E 2R7
Canada

CAPE VERDE CAP-VERT CABO VERDE

Aguinaldo LISBOA RAMOS
Ambassadeur
Représentant Permanent du Cap-Vert auprès de la FAO
Ambassade de la République du Cap-Vert
Viale Algeria 85
00144 Rome
Italy

Mme Maria de Lourdes MARTINS DUARTE Attaché Agricole et Représentant Permanent Suppléant Ambassade de la République du Cap-Vert Viale Algeria 85 00144 Rome

Italy

CHAD

TCHAD

Malloum BAMANGA ABBAS

Chargé d'Affaires a.i.

Représentant Permanent Suppléant Ambassade du Tchad à Rome

Via Antoniotto Usodimare 46

00154 Rome

Italy

CHILE

CHILI

Pedro Alfonso MEDRANO ROJAS

Embajador

Representante Permanente ante la FAO

Representación Permanente de República de Chile ante la FAO

Via Po, 23

00198 Rome

Italy

Sergio INSUNZA BECKER

Agregado Cooperación Técnica

Representación Permanente de República de Chile ante la FAO

Via Po, 23

00198 Rome

Italy

Ricardo LEON

Representante Permanente Alterno ante la FAO

Relaciones Exteriores

Representación Permanente de la República de Chile ante la FAO

Via Po 23

00198 Rome

Italy

CHINA

CHINE

Baoduo ZHU

Deputy Director General

Dept. of Health Inspection and Supervision

Ministry of Health Houhai Bei Yan 44 100725 Beijing P.R. China

Jia-Hua CHEN

Officer

Shanghai Import & Export Commodity Inspection Bureau 13 Zhong Shan Road 200002 Shanghai P.R. China

Yin DAI

Professor

Institute of Food Safety Control & Inspection
Ministry of health
7 Pan Jia Yuan Nanli
100021 Beijing

P.R. China

Ms. Jingzhong GENG

Chief

Division of Food and Nutrition Department of Health Inspection Ministry of Health No. 44 Hou Hai Bei Yan

No. 44 Hou Hai Bei `100725 Beijing

P.R. China

Jihua GUO

Vice Professor

All China Federation of Supply and Marketing Cooperatives

Yu Nong Fruit, Vegetable and Food Development Center

No. 9 Hongmiao

Xicheng District

Beijing 100032

P.R. China

Zongliang JIANG

Director

Food Control Department Imp. & Exp. Commodity Inspection Bureau

Shandong

Qingdao City

P.R. China

Guangjiang TANG

Officer

State Administration for I/E Commodities Inspection

(SACI)

15 Fangcaodi Xijie

Chaoyang District

Beijing 100020

P.R. China

Qinghai WU

Vice Division Chief

Department of Standardization

China State Bureau of Technical Supervision

(CSBTS)

Beijing 100088

P.R. China

Yanmou XIE

Division Chief of Quality Office

Ministry of Agriculture

No. 11 Nong Zhan Guan Nanli

100026 Beijing

P.R. China

Haiying YUAN

First Secretary

Chinese Permanent Representation to FAO

Viale Camillo Sabatini 150

00144 Rome

Italy

Ms. Danyu ZHAO

Assistant Researcher

Institute of Food Safety Control & Inspection

Ministry of Health

7 Panjiayuan Nanli

100021 Beijing

P.R. China

Wuji ZHUANG

Professor

Chief Scientist

China Import and Export Commodity Inspection Institute Gao Bei Dian North Road Chao Yang District 100025 Beijing P.R. China

COLOMBIACOLOMBIE

Ms. Ana Catarina DEL LLANO Consejero Representación Permanente de la República de Colombia ante la FAO Via Giuseppe Pisanelli 4, Int. 5 00196 Rome Italy

CONGO

Jean Serge KAYA-KOMBO 2° Conseiller Ambassade du Congo à Rome Via Modena 50 00184 Rome Italy

COSTA RICA

Ms. Maria Eugenia CHACON M.
Directora
Comité Nacional del Codex Alimentarius
Oficina Nacional de Normas y Unidades de Medida
Ministerio de Economía, Industria y Comercio
Apartado 4135
1000 San José
Costa Rica

David EDWARDS
Ministro Consejero
Primer Delegado Alterno FAO
Representación Permanente de la República de Costa Rica ante la FAO
Via Licia 54
Rome
Italy

Ms. Yolanda GAGO

Representante Permanente Alterno

Representación Permanente de la República de Costa Rica ante la FAO

Via Siacci 2B

Rome

Italy

Ms. Marcela SUNOL PREGO

Consejera

Representación Permanente de la República de Costa Rica ante la FAO

Via Siacci 2B

Rome

Italy

CROATIA CROATIE CROCIA

Mrs. Nada MARKOVčIC
Head of the Contact Point for Codex Alimentarius
State Office for Standardization and Metrology
UI Grada Vukovara 78
41000 Zagreb
Croatia

CUBA

Carlos ISAAC PINO Director Normalización Calle E, # 261 entre 11'y 13 Vedado C. Habana Cuba

Arodis CABALLERO

Director

Ministerio del Azúcar

C. Habana

Cuba

Gabriel LAHENS ESPINOSA

Ingeniero

Ministerio del Comercio Exterior

Calle 23 Esq. Infanta, Vedado

C. Habana

Cuba

Emigdio LEON
Director Nacional Higiene
Ministerio de la Salud Pública
23 y N, Vedado
C. Habana
Cuba

Ms. Maritza LINARES FONTS
Directora Normalización y Calidad
Ministerio de la Industria Pesquera
Dirección de Calidad
5ta Ave. y 248. Barlovento
Playa, C. Habana
Cuba

CYPRUS CHYPRE CHIPRE

Ioannis KARIS
Director
Cyprus Organization for Standards
Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Tourism
Nicosia
Cyprus

Mrs. Phrosso HADJILUCAS Standards Officer Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Tourism Nicosia Cyprus

Chrysanthos LOIZIDES
Agricultural Attaché
Permanent Representation of Cyprus to FAO
Piazza Farnese 44
00186 Rome
Italy

DEM. PEOPLE'S REP. OF KOREA REP. POPULAIRE DEM. DE COREE REP. POPULAR DEM. DE COREA Su Chang YUN
Deputy Permanent Representative of the Democratic
People's Republic of Korea to FAO
Via Ludovico di Savoia, 23
00185 Roma
Italy

Tong Su KIM
Alternative Representative of the Democratic
People's Republic of Korea to FAO
Via Ludovico di Savoia, 23
00185 Roma
Italy

DENMARK DANEMARK DINAMARCA

Kristian HERMANSEN
Director
Veterinary Public Health
Danish Veterinary Service
Ministry of Agriculture and Fisheries
Rolighedsvej 25
DK-1958 Frederiksberg C

Denmark

Mrs. Lise BERG M. Sc. (Dairy Science) Danish Dairy Board Frederiks Allé 22 DK-8000 Aarhus C Denmark

Ms. Anne BUSK-JENSEN
Deputy Director
Confederation of Danish Industries
DK-1787 KØbenhavn V
Denmark

Ole Kopp CHRISTENSEN Director General National Food Agency Ministry of Health Mørkhøj Bygade 19

2860 Søborg Denmark

Jørgen FREDSTED Deputy Director General National Food Agency Ministry of Health Mørkhøj Bygade 19 2860 Søborg Denmark

Lars HERBORG
Head of Division
Veterinary Directorate
Ministry of Agriculture and Fisheries
Rolighedsvej 25
DK-1958 Frederiksberg C
Denmark

Ms. Kirsten JACOBSEN
Head of Department
Confederation of Danish Industries
DK-1787 KØbenhavn V
Denmark

Ms. Annette TOFT Head of Section The Agricultural Council of Denmark Axelborg 3 1609 K⊘benhavn V Denmark

DOMINICA DOMINIQUE

Mrs. Angela H. BENJAMIN Ambassador Embassy of the Commonwealth of Dominica 00143 Rome Italy

ECUADOR EQUATEUR

Francisco SUESCUM - OTTATI

Ministro

Representante Permanente Alterno Embajada de la República del Ecuador Via Guido d'Arezzo 14

Via Guido d'Alezzo

00198 Rome

Italy

EGYPT EGYPTE

EGIPTO

Gamal EL DIN GHALI

Chairman

Arab Company for PH Pharmaceutical Packages

16 El Ateba Street

Dokki, Cairo

Egypt

Adel ABOUL-NAGA

Deputy Permanent Representative

Permanent Representation of Egypt to FAO

Via Salaria 267

Rome

Italy

Ms. Salwa M. DOGHEIM

Director

Central Agriculture Pesticide Laboratory

Ministry of Agriculture

Dokki, Cairo

Egypt

Ahmed A. GABALLA

Scientific Regulatory Affairs Manager

International Atlantic Industries Ltd. (Coca-Cola)

P.O. Box 7052

8th district, Nasr City

Cairo

Egypt

Mohamed F. SADDIK

Professor of Food Safety

Institute of Nutrition

16 Kasm El-Aini Street

Cairo

Egypt

FINLANDE FINLANDIA

Vesa TUOMAALA General Secretary Advisory Committee on Foodstuffs Ministry of Trade and Industry Aleksanterinkatu 4 00130 Helsinki Finland

Kalevi SALMINEN

Director

National Food Administration Ministry of Trade and Industry Box 5, 00531 Helsinki

Finland

Olli SORVETTULA
Deputy Director-General
Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry
P.O. Box 232
00171 Helsinki
Finland

FRANCE FRANCIA

Jean-Jacques BERNIER

Président du Comité National du Codex

Président du Comité sur les Principes Généraux au Ministère de l'Economie et des Finances 59 boulevard Vincent Auriol

75703 Paris Cedex 13

France

Jean-Claude ATTALE

Représentant S.B.I.

4, Place des Ailes

F-92641 Boulogne

Billancourt

France

Mme Nicole BECARUD

Chef de service

A.N.I.A.

Association Nationale des Industries Agro-Alimentaires

Service scientifique et technique

155 Boulevard Haussmann

75008 Paris

France

Mme Dominique BUREL

C.N.I.E.L.

Conseiller réglementaire

Centre National Interprofessional de l'Economie Laitière

34 rue St. Petersbourg

75008 Paris

France

Jean-Pierre DOUSSIN

Vice-Président du Comité National

Ministère de l'Economie et des Finances

59 boulevard Vincent Auriol

75013 Paris Cedex 13

France

Mme Myriam FERRAN

Direction Générale de l'Alimentation

Ministère de l'Agriculture, de la Pêche et de l'Alimentation

175 rue du Chevaleret

75013 Paris

France

Mme Marie-Odile GAILING

Affaires Scientifiques et Réglementaires

Nestlé France

17-19 Quai Paul Doumer

92400 Courbevoie

France

Mme Michelle-Annick GUNZLE

Secrétariat du Comité National

Ministère de l'Economie et des Finances

59 boulevard Vincent Auriol

75703 Paris Cedex 13

France

Mme Annette JUNG Food Law Manager, Fresh Products Groupe DANON Rue Galilée Le Plessis Robinson France

Mme Annie LOC'H Regulatory Affairs Société DANONE Branche Biscuits 6 rue E. Vaillant 91201 Athis-Mons France

Mme Nadine NORMAND

Responsable du programme de Normalisation Agro-alimentaire Association Française de Normalisation Agro-alimentaire (AFNOR)

Tour Europe 92049 Paris la Defense 2 Cedex France

Jean Blaise ROCHETTE de LEMPDES Directeur scientifique Société Diépal NSA-NUTRIPHARM 126 rue Jules Guesde Levallois Perret 92303 France

François SAINT GUILHEM A.N.I.A. Association Nationale de l'Industrie Alimentaire Service scientifique et technique

52 rue du Faubourg St.-Honoré

75008 Paris

France

Mme Catherine VIGREUX Conseiller réglementaires Groupe DANONE 7 rue de Téhéran 75008 Paris France Mme Michèle VALLET-STERVINOU Direction Générale de la Santé Ministère de la Santé Place de Fontenoy 75350 Paris 07 SP France

GABON

Jean Pierre NGOUA
Secretaire Principal Chargé du Comitè
National du Codex Alimentarius
Commission Nationale gabonaise de la FAO
Ministère de l'Agriculture
B.p. 551 Libreville
Gabon

GERMANY ALLEMAGNE ALLEMANIA

Wolf HÖLZEL Ministerialdirigent Bundesministerium für Gesundheit Am Propsthof 78a D-53108 Bonn Germany

Dieter ECKERT Senior Consultant Birkenweg 15 D-53343 Wachtberg Germany

Friedrich FREDE Geschäftsführer Diätverband Postfach 1255 61282 Bad Homburg Germany

Thomas KÜTZEMEIER Adviser VDM Meckenheimer Allee, 137

D-53115 Bonn

Germany

Ms. Susanne LANGGUTH
Director, Consumer Policy
Südzucker AG Mannheim' Ochsenfurt
Winkelsweg 2
53175 Bonn
Germany

Rolph LANGLAIS

Director Scientific Regulatory Affairs

Coca-Cola GMBH

Frankenstrasse 348

D-45133 Essen

Germany

Ms. Angelika MROHS

Director

Bund für Lebensmittelrecht und Lebensmittelkunde

e. V., BLL

Godesberger Allee 157

53175 Bonn

Germany

Ludwig SÄTTLER

Ministerialrat

Bundesministerium für Ernährung, Landwirtschaft und Forsten

Rochusstraße 10

Bonn

Germany

Franz Josef SCHUELLER

Regierungsdirector

Bundesministerium für Wirtschaft

Villemombler Str. 76

53123 Bonn

Germany

Arpad SOMOGYI

Director

Federal Institute for Health Protection of Consumers and Veterinary Medicine

Ministry of Heath

Postfach 130033

D-14191, Berlin Germany

GHANA

Mrs. Therese STRIGGNER SCOTT Ambassador Permanent Representative to FAO Embassy of the Republic of Ghana Via Ostriana 4 00199 Rome Italy

Mallam I. SEIDU
Alternate Permanent Representative to FAO
Embassy of the Republic of Ghana
Via Ostriana, 4
00199 Rome
Italy

GRECE GRECE GRECIA

Dimitrios GERAKOPOULOS
Chief, Inspection Service
Codex Contact Point
Department of Processing, Standardization and Quality Control of Agricultural Products
Ministry of Agriculture
2 Acharnon Str.
10176 Athens
Greece

Spiros DOYDOYNAKIS
General Veterinary Directorate
Ministry of Agriculture
Department of Milk and Milk Product
G.Kapnokoptirioy Str.
Athens
Greece

Loukas THEOHAROPOULOS Head of Milk Section Directorate for Animal Production - Valorization Ministry of Agriculture 6 Kapnocoptirion Str.

Athens

Greece

GUATEMALA

Bruno DEGER Ministro Consejero Embaja de la República de Guatemala Via dei Colli della Farnesina, 128 00194 Rome Italy

GUINEA

GUINEE

S. Deen BANGOURA

Représentant Permanent de la République de Guinée Ambassade de la République de Guinée Via Adelaide Ristori, 9-13 00197 Rome Italy

HAITI

Mme Suze PERCY Conseiller Représentant Permanent Adjoint Ambassade d'Haiti en Italie Via Fauro Ruggero 59 00197 Rome Italy

HONDURAS

Mrs. Ileana LOPEZ TURCIOS Embajada de la República de Honduras Via Giambattista Vico, 40 00196 Rome Italy

HUNGARY HONGRIE HUNGRIA

Aurél SALAMON

Director

Hungarian National Codex Committee Head of Quality Control Department

Ministry of Agriculture

Kossuth L.tér 11

Bp. Budapest

Hungary

Péter Akos BIACS

Chairman

Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling

Central Food Research Institute

Ministry of Agriculture

Kassuth L. Str. 11

H-1022 Budapest

Hungary

INDIA

INDE

Mrs. Debi MUKHERJEE

Assistant Director General of Health Service

(PFA)

Ministry of Health and Family Welfare

Monlana Azad Road

Nirman Bhowan

New Delhi 11 (110011)

India

Atul SINHA

Minister for Agriculture

Alternate Permanent Representative

of India to FAO

Ministry of Agriculture

c/o Embassy of India

Via XX Settembre 4

00187 Rome

Italy

INDONESIA

INDONESIE

Wisnu KATIM

Director General

Food and Drug Control Ministry of Health Percetakan Negara 23 Jakarta Pusat Indonesia

Hadiono BADJURI Counsellor Indonesian Embassy Via Campania 55 00187 Rome Italy

Surya B. DIPARAHARJA
International Cooperation Division
Dewan Standardisasi Nasional
Standardization Council of Indonesia (DSN)
Sasana Widya Sarwono, 5th Floor
JL. Gatot Subroto 10
Jakarta 12710
Indonesia

Slamet EFFENDI
Head of Sub-Directorate
Directorate for Standardization and Quality Control
Ministry of Trade
M.I. Ridwan Rais 5
Jakarta Pusat
Indonesia

Suroso NATAKUSUMA Assistant to the Minister Ministry of Food Affairs JL. Gatot Subroto 49 Jakarta Indonesia

Sumpeno PUTRO
Director, Centre for Standardization and Accreditation
Ministry of Agriculture
Jalan Harsono RM
N° 3 Pasar Minggu
Jakarta
Indonesia

Djauhari ROUSSTIA Commercial Attaché Embassy of the Republic of Indonesia Via Campania, 55 00187 Rome Italy

Habdisudarma SAMIHADJI
Head of Division, Research & Development
PT Indomilk
JL. Wijaya V/11
P.O. Box 2531
Jakarta 1001
Indonesia

Ms. Suhartuti SOETOPO
Head of Sub Directorate for Standardization and Technology
Directorate for Programming
Ministry of Industry
JL. Gatot Subroto Kav.527-53
18th Floor
Jakarta Selatan
Indonesia

Wahyudi SUGIYANTO Agricultural Attaché Indonesian Mission to the EU Bld. de la Woluwe 38 B-1200 Bruxelles Belgium

Ading SURYANA
Director of Food Control
Ministry of Health
JL. Percetakan Negara 23
Jakarta Pusat
Indonesia

M. Aman WIRAKARTAKUSUMAH Adviser to the Minister Ministry of Food Affairs JL. Gatot Subroto 49 Jakarta Indonesia

IRAN (ISLAMIC REPUBLIC OF) IRAN (REPUBLIQUE ISLAMIQUE D') IRAN (REPUBLICA ISLAMICA DEL)

Abbas AMINI
Alternate Permanent Representative to FAO
Permanent Mission of the Islamic Republic of Iran to FAO
Via Aventina, 8
00153 Roma
Italy

Mehdi EBRAHIMI
Alternate Permanent Representative to FAO
Permanent Mission of the Islamic Republic of Iran to FAO
Via Aventina, 8
00153 Roma
Italy

Mrs. Mansureh SEDEHI ESFAHANI
Director of Meat & Milk Products Science
Institute of Standards and Industrial Research of Irar
P.O. Box 31385-163
Karaj
Iran

Mohammad Ali YAZDANI
Alternate Permanent Representative to FAO
Permanent Mission of the Islamic Republic of Iran to FAO
Via Aventina, 8
00153 Roma
Italy

IRAQ

Kutaiba M. HASSAN
Permanent Representative to FAO
Permanent Representation of the Republic of Iraq to FAO
Via della Camilluccia 355
00135 Rome
Italy

IRELANDE IRLANDA Jerome OSHEA

Chief Economist

Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Forestry

Agriculture House

Kildare Street

Dublin 2

Ireland

David BEHAN

Alternate Permanen

t Representative to FAO Piazza di Campitelli, 3

00186 Rome

Italy

ISRAEL

Dan HALPERN

Chairman, Israeli Codex Alimentarius

Committee

Director, Institute of Quality Control

Ministry of Industry and Trade

P.O. Box 299

Jerusalem

Israel

Ms. Miriam FREUND

Head, Pesticide Division

Plant Protection and Inspection Services

Ministry of Agriculture

P.O. Box 78

Beit Dagan 50250

Israel

Eldad LANDSHUT

Director

Plant Protection and Inspection Services

Ministry of Agriculture

P.O. Box 78

Beit Dagan 50250

Israel

Stefan SOBACK

Head, National Residue Control Laboratory

Kimron Veterinary Institute

Ministry of Agriculture

Beit Dagan 50250

Israel

ITALY ITALIE ITALIA

Ms. Enrica QUATTRUCCI Research Chief Istituto Nazionale della Nutrizione Via Ardeatina 546 00178 Roma Italy

Sergio ALULLI Direttore SINAL Ministero dell' Agricoltura Via Campania 31 Rome Italy

Ms. Adriana BOCCA Ricercatore Istituto Superiore della Sanità Viale Regina Elena 299 Rome Italy

Marco CASTELLINA Veterinario direttore Ministero della Sanità Piazza G. Marconi 25 00144 Rome Italy

Ms. Marinella COLLAUTO Farmacista direttore Ministero della Sanità P.zza G. Marconi 25 00144 Rome Italy

Mrs. Donatella CAPUCCIO ISMEA

Via Nomentana, 183 Rome Italy

Ms. Gabriella CONTI Farmacista direttore Ministero della Sanità P.zza G. Marconi 25 00144 Rome Italy

Raimondo CUBADDA Professor University of Molise Via Tiberio 21 DISTAAM Campobasso Italy

Gabriele GANDINI Direttore Veterinario Ministero della Sanità Via del Passatore 41011 Cantogalliano Modena Italy

Ms. Lucia GUIDARELLI Primo direttore medico Ministero della Sanità P.zza G. Marconi 25 00144 Rome Italy

Giovanni QUAGLIA Professor Istituto Nazionale della Nutrizione Via Ardeatina 546 00178 Rome Italy

Agostino MACRI' Istituto Superiore di Sanità Direttore della ricerca Viale Regina Elena 299 00161 Rome

Italy

Ms. Elena ORBAN

Ricercatrice

Istituto Nazionale della Nutrizione

Via Ardeatina 546

00178 Roma

Italy

Gennaro PISCOPO

Ministero delle Risorse Agricole

Via XX Settembre 20

00187 Roma

Italy

Paolo SAVI

Presidente

Assoittica Italia

Via Lago di Lesina 22

00199 Rome

Italy

Mrs. Cristina SCACCINI

Senior Researcher

Istituto Nazionale della Nutrizione

Via Ardeatina, 456

Rome

Italy

Bruno SCARPA

Funzionario Medico

Ministero della Sanità

Piazza G. Marconi 25

00144 Rome

Italy

JAPAN JAPON

Yuzo HAYASHI

Ex-Director for Biological Safety Research Center

National Institute of Health Sciences

c/o Food Sanitation Division

Environmental Health Bureau

Ministry of Health and Welfare 1-2-2 Kasumigaseki Chiyoda-ku Tokyo 100 Japan

Yoshihide ENDO
Designate Alternate
Permanent Representative of Japan to FAO
Via Quintino Sella, 60
00187 Rome
Italy

Ms. Kazuko KIMURA
Deputy Director
Food Sanitation Division
Environmental Health Bureau
Ministry of Health and Welfare
1-2-2 Kasumigaseki
Chiyoda-ku
Tokyo, 100
Japan

Hiroaki KISHI Minister Embassy of Japan Via Quintino Sella, 60 00187 Rome Italy

Yuzuru MIYAMOTO
Deputy Director
Consumers Economy Division
Food Marketing Bureau
Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries
1-2-1 Kasumigaseki
Chiyoda-ku
Tokyo 100
Japan

Michiru OKUMA
Director
Consumers Economy Division
Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries
1-2-1 Kasumigaseki

Chiyoda-ku Tokyo 100 Japan

Isao TOJO
Deputy Director
Office of Sustainable Agriculture
Crop Production Division
Agricultural Production Bureau
Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries
1-2-1 Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku
Tokyo 100
Japan

Hiromoto WATANABE Alternate Permanent Rep. of Japan to FAO Via Quintino Sella, 60 00187 Rome Italy

Akira YAMAMOTO
Director
Food Chemistry Division
Environmental Health Bureau
Ministry of Health and Welfare
1-2-2 Kasumigaseki
Chiyoda-ku
Tokyo 100
Japan

KENYA

Nelson N. WAWERU
Ag. Deputy Chief Public Health Officer
Ministry of Health
Cathedral Road
P.O. Box 30016
Nairobi
Kenya

Paul K. CHEPKWONY Agriculture Attaché Embassy of Kenya Via Archimede 164 00197 Rome Italy

Ms. Tabitha N. KIMANI Agricultural Officer Ministry of Agriculture P.O. Box 30028 Nairobi Kenya

KOREA, REPUBLIC OF COREE, REPUBLIQUE DE COREA, REPUBLICA DE

Hyun Ki BAIK
Deputy Permanent Representative to FAO
Embassy of the Republic of Korea
Via Barnaba Oriani, 30
00197 Rome
Italy

Yeong Ki PARK
Director of Marketing Management Division
Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry & Fisheries
1, Chungang-dong
Kwachon, Kyonggi-do
Korea

Dong Kyun SHIN
Director of Food Safety
Ministry of Health & Welfare
1, Chungang-dong
Kwachon, Kyonggi-do
Korea

Kyu-Jai HAN
Head of Standard Management Section
Korea Food Research Institute
San 46-1, Baekhyun-dong
Bundang-ku, Songnam
Kyonggi-do
Korea

Myung Sub CHUNG
Director of Food Industry Department

Korean Institute of Food Hygiene 57-1 Noryangjin-dong Dongjak-ku Seoul Korea

Young Soo KIM
Deputy General Manager
National Agricultural Cooperative Federation
75 1-KA Chungjeongro, Jungku
Seoul
Korea

LATVIA LETTONIE LETONIA

Mrs. Ligita MELECE
Head of Department
Ministry of Agriculture
Latvia State Institute of Agrarian Economics
14 Struktoru Str.
LV-1039, Riga
Latvia

LEBANON LIBAN LIBANO

Ibrahim EL HAJJ
Directeur de la Prévention Sanitaire
Ministère de la Santé Publique
Beyrouth
Liban

LESOTHO

Ms. Thakane ADORO First Secretary Embassy of the Kingdom of Lesotho Via di Porta Pertusa 4 00165 Rome Italy Tieiso KHALEMA Counsellor Alternate Permanent Representative Embassy of the Kingdom of Lesotho Via di Porta Pertusa 4 00165 Rome Italy

Moorosi RADITAPOLE Ambassador Embassy of the Kingdom of Lesotho Via di Porta Pertusa 4 00165 Rome Italy

LITHUANIA LITUANIE LITUANIA

Algirdas ZEMAITIS
Ambassador
Permanent Representation of the Republic of Lithuania
Via al Quarto Miglio, 111
00178 Rome
Italy

LIBYA LIBYE LIBIA

Mansur Mabruk SEGHAYER
Counsellor and Alternate Permanent Representative
Permanent Representation of the Socialist People's
Lybian Arab Jamahiriya to FAO
Via Nomentana 365
00162 Rome
Italy

MADAGASCAR

Raphael RABE Chargé d'Affaires a.i. Ambassade de la République de Madagascar Via Riccardo Zandonai 84/A 00194 Rome

Italy

MALAYSIA MALAISIE MALASIA

Dato Dr. Wan Mahmud WAN OTHMAN
Deputy Director-General of Health
Ministry of Health
2nd Floor, Block E
Kompleks Pejabat-Pejabat
Jalan Dungun, Bukit Damansara
50490 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

Mrs. Swee Keng LEONG

Head

International Standardization Unit

Standard and Industrial Research Institute of Malaysia (SIRIM)

Persiaran Dato' Menteri

P.O. Box 7035, 40911 Shah Alam

Selangor Darul Ehsan

Malaysia

Mrs. Nur Azmy MD. YAMAN Under Secretary Ministry of Primary Industries 8th Floor, Menara Dayabumi Jalan Sultan Hishamuddin 50640 Kuala Lumpur Malaysia

Ms. Yeoh GIM BEE
Principal Assistant Secretary
Ministry of Agriculture
Wisma Tani
Jalan Salehuddin
50624 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

Che Ani SAAD Agriculture Attaché and Alternate Permanent Representative to FAO Embassy of Malaysia Via Nomentana 297 00162 Roma Italy

Ishak SHAMSUDIN
Director R&D
MATRADE
7th Floor, Wisma Sime Darby
Jalan Raja Laut
50350 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

Mrs. Noraini SUDIN
Head, Technical Advisory Service
Palm Oil Research Institute of Malaysia Ministry of
Primary Industries (PORIM)
P.O. Box 10620
50720 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

Ab. Ghaffar A. TAMBI
Assistant Agricultural Attaché and Alternate Permanent Representative to FAO
Embassy of Malaysia
Via Nomentana 297
00162 Roma
Italy

Prakas NAIR
Manager R&D
MATRADE
7th Floor, Wisma Sime Darby
Jalan Raja Laut
50350 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

Mohtar ABDULLAH Trade Commissioner Consulate of Malaysia 5th Floor, Via Vittor Pisani 31 20124 Milano Italy

Ms. Zaliha ABDULLAH
Department of Veterinary Services
Ministry of Agriculture

Block A, Floor 8 & 9, Exchange Square Jalan Semantan off 50630 Kuala Lumpur Malaysia

Mrs. Rozita BAHARUDDIN
Enforcement Officer (Quality Control)
Palm Oil Registration & Licensing Authority
Ministry of Primary Industries
Lot 6, SS6, Jalan Perbandaran
47301 Kelana Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Petaling Jaya
Malaysia

MALTA MALTE

Francis Montanaro MIFSUD Ambassador Permanent Representation of Malta to FAO Lungotevere Marzio 12 00186 Roma Italy

MAURITANIA MAURITANIE

Ould Mohamed Ahid TOURAD
Vice Permanent Representative of Mauritania to FAO
Embassy of Mauritania
Via Paisiello, 26
Rome
Italy

MEXICO

Ms. María E. BRANCHO
Directora General de Normas
Secretaría de Comercio y Fomento Industrial
(SECOFI)
Av. Puente de Tecamachalco No. 6
Naucalpan de Juárez
México

José ELIAS

Representante ante la FAO

Embajada de Mexico

Secretaría de Medio Ambiente, Recursos Naturales

y Pesca

SEMARNAP

Via Lazzaro Spallanzani, 16

00161 Rome

Italy

José ROBLES-AGUILAR

Representante Permanente Alterno

Embajada de los Estados Unidos Mexicanos

Via Lazzaro Spallanzani 16

00161 Roma

Italy

Eduardo R. MENDEZ

Advisor to Ministry of Commerce

Ministry of Commerce

P.O. Box 60-486

México D.F. 03800

Luis F. HERNANDEZ

Director de Asuntos Internationales

Secretaría de Comercio y Fomento Industrial

Av. Puente de Tecamachalco N. 6

Naucalpan de Juárez

México

Eduardo CERVANTES

Presidente

Comité tecnico de Normalización de la Industria Alimentaria

Calzada Vallejo 1849

07630 México, D.F.

México

MOROCCO

MAROC

MARRUECOS

Ms. Wafaa ZNIBER

Représentant permanant suppléant auprès de la FAO

Ambassade du Royaume du maroc

Via Lazzaro Spallanzani 8-10

00161 Roma

Italy

MYANMAR

Min NAING

Alternate Permanent Representative of Myanmar to FAO Embassy of the Union of Myanmar Via Vincenzo Bellini, 20 00198 Rome Italy

NETHERLANDS PAYS-BAS PAISES BAJOS

Steven VAN HOOGSTRATEN
Director for Food and Product Safety
Ministry of Welfare, Health and Cultural Affairs
P.O. Box 3008
2280 MK Rijswijk
The Netherlands

Ms. Cornelia LOESBERG

Head

Division for Foodstuffs and Risk Management Agriculture Nature Management & Fisheries P.O. Box 20401 2500 EK The Hague

The Netherlands

Mrs. A. MORTENSEN-VAN DER VEEN

Executive Officer for Codex Alimentarius 1 Ministry of Agriculture Nature Management and Fisheries

P.O. Box 20401

2500 EK The Hague

The Netherlands

Hans VAN DER KOOI

Chairman

Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants Ministry of Agriculture Nature Management and Fisheries P.O. Box 20401

2500 EK The Hague

The Netherlands

Wim VAN ECK

Chairman

Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues

Head of Chemical Department

Ministry of Welfare, Health and Cultural Affairs

P.O. Box 3008

2280 MK Rijswijk

The Netherlands

Otto KNOTTNERUS

General Commodity Board on Arable Products

Post Box 29739

The Hague

The Netherlands

NEW ZEALAND NOUVELLE-ZELANDE NUEVA ZELANDIA

Peter J. O'HARA

Deputy Director-General

Ministry of Agriculture and Fisheries

P.O. Box 2526

Wellington

New Zealand

Steve C. HATHAWAY

National Manager (Research and Development)

Ministry of Agriculture and Fisheries

Regulatory Authority (Meat and Seafood)

P.O. Box 646

Gisborne

New Zealand

Sundararaman RAJASEKAR

Group Leader (External Relations)

Ministry of Agriculture and Fisheries

Agriculture Policy

P.O. Box 2526

Wellington

New Zealand

NIGERIA

Gabriel OSUIDE

Director-General

National Agency for Food and Drug

Administration and Control (NAFDAC)

Ministry of Health

Lagos

Nigeria

Joseph Ahmadu ABALAKA

Director General

Standards Organization of Nigeria

Phase 1, 9th floor

Federal Secretariat

Ikoyi, Lagos

Nigeria

Benjamin ADDISOM

National Agency for Food and Drug

Administration and Control (NAFDAC)

Ministry of Health

13, MacNeil Road

Yaba, Lagos

Nigeria

Mrs. May AYIVOR

Principal Personnel Officer

Standards Organization of Nigeria

Phase 1, 9th floor

Federal Secretariat

Ikoyi, Lagos

Nigeria

F. BATURE

Permanent Representative

Permanent Representation of the Federal

Republic of Nigeria to FAO

Via Orazio 14-16

00193 Roma

Italy

Ekpenyong Udo USORO

Deputy Director Inspectorate

National Agency for Food and Drug

Administration and Control

Room 5101, 5th Floor

Federal Secretariat Phase II

Lagos

Nigeria

NORWAY NORVEGE NORUEGA

Atle Ørbeck SØRHEIM
Director General
Norwegian Food Control Authority
Ministry of Agriculture
P.O. Box 8187 Dep
N-0034 Oslo
Norway

Eikemo AKSEL Directorate of Fisheries Norway

Tone MATHESON
Senior Executive Officer
Ministry of Health and Social affairs
P.O. Box 8011 Dep.
N-0030 OSLO
Norway

Frode BAUMANN
Executive Officer
Norwegian Food Control Authority
P.O. Box 8187 Dep
N-0034 Oslo
Norway

Aksel EIKEMO
Head of Department
Department of Fish Quality Control
Directorate of Fisheries
POB 185
N-5002 Bergen
Norway

Kiell NYHUS Head of Division Ministry of Agriculture P.O. Box 8007 Dep N-0030 Oslo Norway

John RACE
Head International Liaison
Norwegian Food Control Authority
P.O. Box 8187 Dep
N-0034 Oslo
Norway

PAKISTAN

Shahid RASHID
Agriculture Counsellor
Embassy of the Islamic Republic of Pakistan
Via della Camilluccia 682
00135 Rome
Italy

PANAMA

Mrs. Mayra IVANOKOVICH ANZOLA Embajador Representación de la República de Panamá Viale del Vignola No. 39 00196 Rome Italy

Horacio MALTEZ
Representante Permanente Adjunto
Representación de la República de Panamá
Viale del Vignola No. 39
00196 Rome
Italy

PARAGUAY

Oscar CABELLO Ambassador Ministry of Foreign Affairs Asunción Paraguay Jorge FIGUEREDO-FRATTA Consejero Embajada de la República del Paraguay Viale Parioli 12

00197 Rome

Italy

PERU PEROU

Carlos Felipe PASTOR TALLEDO Director Ejecutivo Dirección General de Salud Ambiental Ministerio de Salud

Las Amapolas No. 350 Lima 14

Peru

Ms. Elsa CARBONELL

Directora Nacional

Servicio Nacional de Sanidad Agraria

SENASA

Ministerio de Agricultura

Psje Zela s/n, 10° Piso

Lima

Peru

Enrique ROSSL

Representante Permanente del Perú ante la FAO

Lungotevere Portuense 150 - Int. 17

00153 Rome

Italy

Ms. Gabriella VASSALLO

Representante Permanente Alterno

Representación Permanente del Perú

Lungotevere Portuense 150

00153 Rome

Italy

PHILIPPINES FILIPINAS

Sergio A. BARRERA

Ambassador and Philippine Permanent

Representative to FAO Philippine Embassy Via S. Valentino 12 00197 Rome Italy

Noel D. DE LUNA Agricultural Attaché Deputy Permanent Representative to FAO Philippine Embassy Via S. Valentino 12 00197 Rome Italy

Ms. Jindra Linda DEMETERIO Agricultural Attaché Department of Agriculture Philippine Embassy 85 Rue Washington B1050 Bruxelles Belgique

Romeo BORILLO Commercial Attaché Philippine Mission to the United Nations 47 Avenue Blanc 1202 Geneva Switzerland

Harris J. BIXLER
Technical Advisor
Seaweed Industry Association of the Philippines
(SIAP)
P.O. Box 252
Searsport ME 04974
USA

Maria Luisa GAVINO Alternate Permanent Representative to FAO Philippine Embassy Via S. Valentino 12 00197 Rome Italy

POLOGNE POLONIA

Anna SKRZYNSKA
Chief of Section
Quality Inspection Office
Ministry of Foreign Economic Relations
32 Zurawia Street
00-950 Warsaw
Poland

Janusz BERDOWSKI
President
Director, Polish Centre for Testing and Certificatio
23A Klobucka Street
Warsaw
Poland

Mrs. Maria CIAPINSKA
Main Specialist
Ministry of Agriculture and Food Economy
30 Wspólna Street
Warsaw
Poland

Kazimierz KARLOWSKI Head of Department National Institute of Hygiene Department of Food Research 24 Chocimska Street 00-791 Warsaw Poland

Mrs. Elzbieta MARKOWICZ
Main Specialist
Quality Inspection Office
Ministry of Foreign Economic Relations
32/34 Zurawia Street
Warsaw
Poland

Ms. Joanna TKACZYK
Foreign Relations Manager
Polish Centre for Testing and Certification

Klobucka Str. 23 Warsaw

Poland

Stanislaw WALENTA
Head of Accreditation Office
Polish Centre for Testing and Certification
Klobucka Str. 23
Warsaw
Poland

PORTUGAL

José Manuel SOARES COSTA
Chairman
Portuguese FAO National Committee
Ministry of Foreign Affairs
Largo do Rilvas
1354 Lisboa
Portugal

Antonio MAGALHAES COELHO Assessor Principal Ministerio dos Negoçios Estrangeiros Comissao Nacional da FAO Largo do Rilvas 1354 Lisboa Portugal

QATAR

Nasser BIN HAMAD AL-KHALIFA Ambassador Ministry of Foreign Affairs Embassy of the State of Qatar Via Accademia Peloritana, 29 Rome Italy

Batal DOSSARI Second Secretary Ministry of Foreign Affairs Embassy of the State of Qatar Via Accademia Peloritana, 29

Rome

Italy

Akeel HATOOR

Ministry of Foreign Affairs Embassy of the State of Qatar Via Accademia Peloritana, 29 Rome

Rome

Italy

ROMANIA ROUMANIE RUMANIA

Gheorghe MENCINICOPSCHI
Director of Institute of Food Research
Academy of Agriculture and Forestry Sciences
Institute of Food Chemistry
1 Gârlei Str.
71576 Bucharest
Romania

Tudorel BALTA

Directeur

Direction des Standards et Qualité

Ministère de l'Agriculture et de l'Alimentation Bucharest

Romania

Leon ROSENTULER

Chef collectif de recherche

Ministère de l'Agriculture et Alimentation

Academie des Sciences Agricoles et Forestières

Institut de Recherches Alimentaires

Rue Gârlei Nr. 1

Sectorul 1, Cod. 71576

Bucharest

Romania

Ms. Alexandrina TOMA

Chef de laboratoire

Institut de chimie alimentaire

Academie de Sciences

Ministère de l'Agriculture et Alimentation

Rue Gârlie Nr. 1

Sectorul 1, Cod. 71576

Bucharest

Romania

RUSSIAN FEDERATION FEDERATION DE RUSSIE FEDERACION DE RUSIA

Mrs. Svetlana RUSANOVA Chief of Department Ministry of Fisheries Rozhdestvensky Bul. 12

Moscow Russia

Andrey N. BOGATYREV

Adviser to the Government of the Russian Federation

Tverskaya str. 11 Moscow 103905

Russia

Shikhail BOUNINE

Deputy Director of the All-Russian

Federation to FAO

Ministry of Agriculture

Moscow, 143080

p/o Lesnay Borodok

Uniissok

Russia

Mrs. Nina CHUPAKHINA

Chief of Laboratory

VNIRO

V. Krasnoselskaya 17

Moscow

Russia

Igor CHUVAHIN

Alternate Observer of the Russian Federation to FAO

Embassy of Russian Federation

Via Gaeta 5

00185 Rome

Italy

Mrs. Kira MIKHLINA

Scientist

VNIRO

V. Krasnoselskaya

Moscow

Russia

N.A. STARODUBZEV

Head of the Main Department of Supplies of Agricultural Products and State Inspection of Food Products Quality Ministry of Agriculture and Food Moscow Russia

Mrs. Valentina P. TARASENKOVA
Head Specialist
Ministry of Sciences and Technical Politics of Russia
11, Tverskaya str.
103905 Moscow
Russia

SAUDI ARABIA ARABIE SAOUDITE ARABIA SAUDITA

Bandar SHALHOOB
Alternate Representative
Permanent Representation of the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia to FAO
Via della Piramide Cestia 63
00153 Rome
Italy

Badr ALSAAD
Director of Food and Agriculture Department
Saudi Arabia Standard
Organization (SASO)
P.O. Box 3437
Riyadh 11471
Saudi Arabia

Mrs. Sinag MASSODE General Director of Standard Department Saudi Arabian Standard Organization P.O. Box 3437 Riyadh Saudi Arabia

SENEGAL

Mme Balla SY
Ambassadeur
Représentant permanent auprès de la FAO
Ambassade de la République du Sénégal
Via Giulia 66
00186 Rome
Italy

Moussa Bocar LY
Ministre-Conseiller
Représentant permanent adjoint
Ambassade de la République du Sénégal
Via Giulia 66
00186 Rome
Italy

SINGAPORE SINGAPOUR SINGAPUR

Hong Kuan CHIA
Head
Food Control Department
Ministry of the Environment
Environment Building
40 Scotts Road
Singapore 0922

Ms. Huay Leng SEAH
Deputy Head
Food Control Department
Ministry of the Environment
Environment Building
40 Scotts Road
Singapore 0922

SLOVAK REPUBLIC REPUBLIQUE SLOVAQUE REPUBLICA ESLOVACA Ms. Mária KADLECIKOVA
Permanent Representative of the Slovak
Republic to FAO
Embassy of the Slovak Republic
Via dei Colli della Farnesina, 144
00194 Rome
Italy

Josef KALAŠ
Deputy General Director
Slovak Agricultural and Food Inspection
Priemyselná 4
81549 Bratislava
Slovakia

Milay KOVAč Director Food Research Institute Priemyselná 4, P.O. Box 25 82006 Bratislava Slovakia

Ján ONDREJKA Chief Expert Ministry of Health of the Slovak Republic Limbova 6 Bratislava Slovakia

SOUTH AFRICA AFRIQUE DU SUD AFRICA DEL SUR

Theodore VAN DE VENTER
Director, Food and Chemicals
Department of Health
Private Bag X 828
0001 Pretoria
South Africa

SPAIN ESPAGNE ESPANA Carlos ARANDA MARTIN Representante Permanente Embajada de España Largo dei Lombardi 21 00186 Rome Italy

J. Ignacio ARRANZ
Subdirector General de Higiene de los Alimentos
Ministerio de Sanidad y Consumo
Paseo del Prado 18-20
28071 Madrid
España

Jaime GARCIA BADIAS
Representante Permanente Adjunto
Embajada de España
Largo dei Lombardi 21
00186 Rome
Italy

Felipe MITTELBRUNN GARCIA Consejero Técnico Vice Secretaría General Técnica Ministerio de Sanidad y Consumo Paseo del Prado 18-20 28071 Madrid España

Quintiliano PEREZ BONILLA Subdirector General Ministerio de Agricultura P° Infanta Isabel 1 28071 Madrid España

SRI LANKA

Upatissa PETHIYAGODA
Permanent Representative to FAO
Embassy of Sri Lanka
Via G. Cuboni 6-8
00197 Rome
Italy

SUDAN SOUDAN

Mohamed Said HARBI
Permanent Representative of Sudan to FAO
Embassy of the Republic of Sudan
Via L. Spallanzani 24
00161 Rome
Italy

SWEDEN SUEDE SUECIA

Arne KARDELL
Director General
National Food Administration
Box 622
S-751 26 Uppsala
Sweden

Nils FARNERT Consultant Stureparken 3 NB 11426 Stockholm Sweden

Mrs. Eva LÖNBERG Codex Coordinator for Sweden National Food Administration Box 622 S-75126 Uppsala Sweden

Per-Erik NISTER
Senior Legal Adviser
National Food Administration
Box 622
S-75126 Uppsala
Sweden

Stuart SLORACH
Deputy Director-General
National Food Administration
Box 622

S-75126 Uppsala

Sweden

SWITZERLAND SUISSE SUIZA

Pierre ROSSIER
Head of Codex Alimentarius Section
Federal Office of Public Health
Birkenweg 14
CH-3186 Duedingen
Switzerland

Ms. Irina DU BOIS Nestec Ltd. CH-1800 Vevey Switzerland

Marquard IMFELD Director Regulatory Affairs Hoffmann-La Roche Inc. CH-4000 Basle Switzerland

Ms. Eva ZBINDEN
Codex Section
Federal Office of Public Health
Haslerstrasse 27
CH-3011 Berne
Switzerland

TANZANIA TANZANIE

Joseph K. MHELLA Alternate Permanent Representative Embassy of the United Republic of Tanzania Via Ombrone, 3 00198 Rome Italy

THAILANDE THAILANDE TAILANDIA Pakdee POTHISIRI Inspector-General Ministry of Public Health Tiwanond Road Nonthaburi 11000 Thailand

Phot INGANINANDA Board of Trade of Thailand 134/7 Thanon Phaya Thai Ratchathewi Bangkok 10400 Thailand

Pinit KORSIEPORN

First Secretary (Agriculture) and Alternate Permanent Representative Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives Royal Thai Embassy Via Zara 9 00198 Rome Italy

Miss Kanigar SOMSAKUL
Commodity Standards Technical Officer 6
Department of Foreign Trade
Ministry of Commerce
Rachadamnern Ave
Bangkok 10200
Thailand

Miss Metanee SUKONTARUG Standards Officer Thai Industrial Standards Institute Rama VI Street Bangkok 10400 Thailand

Mrs. Marasee SURAKUL
Secretary General
Office of the National FAO Committee of Thailand
Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives
Bangkok
Thailand

Mrs. Kusumaln TRIVITAYANURAK
The Federation of Thai Industries
415 Sukumvit Rd.
Samrong
Nua Samuthprakarn
Thailand

Mrs. Praneet UDOMSITDHISETH
Department of Foreign Trade
Ministry of Commerce
Bangkok 10200
Thailand

Vuttichai WANGLEE Board of Trade of Thailand 248 Chieng Mai Road Klongsan Bangkok Thailand

TUNISIA TUNISIE

Chekib ALGUEMI
Head Biophysics Division
National Institute Nutrition
11, Rue Jebel Lakhdar
Bab Saadoun
Tunis
Tunisia

Meftah AMARA
Directeur-général p.i. de l'Agro-alimentaire
30, Rue Alain Savary
1002 Le Belvedere
Tunis
Tunisia

Zouhair KALLAL
Conseiller auprès du Ministère de la Santé
Ministère de la Santé Publique
15 Rue Haroun Rachid
Kheredine 2015
Tunisia

TURKEY TURQUIE TURQUIA

A. Serpil KÖKSOY
Food Technologist
Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs
General Directorate of Protection and Control
Akay Cad. No. 3
06100 Bakanliklar
Ankara
Turkey

UGANDA OUGANDA

Edward MULONDO
Standards Officer
Foods and Chemicals
Ministry of Trade and Industry
Uganda National Bureau of Standards
P.O. Box 6329
Kampala
Uganda

Wilberforce A. SAKIRA Alternate Permanent Representative to FAO Via Ennio Q. Visconti, 8 00193 Roma Italy

UNITED KINGDOM ROYAUME-UNI REINO UNIDO

Charles A. COCKBILL
Head of Consumer Protection Division
Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food
Room 308
Ergon House
c/o Nobel House
17 Smith Square
London SW1P 3JR
UK

Jonathan R. BELL
Head of Food Science II Division
Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food
Nobel House
17 Smith Square
London SW1P 3JR
UK

T.A. BUCHAN
Head of Branch B
Consumer Protection Division
Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food
Ergon House
c/o Nobel House
17 Smith Square
London SW1P 3JR
UK

Roger SKINNER
Branch Head
Health Aspects of Environment and Food Department of Health
Skipton House
80 London Road
London SE1 6LW
UK

Roy VON KUTZLEBEN
National Office for Animal Health
Mallinckrodt Veterinary Ltd.
Breakspear Road South
Harefield, Uxbridge
Middlesex UB9 6LS
UK

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ETATS-UNIS D'AMERIQUE ESTADOS UNIDOS DE AMERICA

Thomas BILLY
Associate Administrator
Food Safety and Inspection Service
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Room 331-E, Administration Building

14th and Independence Avenue, SW. Washington, DC 20250 USA

Ms. Rhona APPLEBAUM
Executive Vice President
Scientific and Regulatory Affairs
National Food Processors Association
1401 New York Avenue, NW.
Washington, DC 20005
USA

Ms. Franta BROULIK
Director, Regulatory Affairs
McNeil Specialty Products Company
501 George Street
New Brunswick, N.J 08903-2400
USA

Mrs. Marsha ECHOLS
Washington Counsel
National Association for the Speciality Food Trade, Inc.
1655 Wisconsin Avenue, N.W.
Washington D.C. 20007
USA

Lloyd HARBERT
Director, Office of Food Safety
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Rm. 5545, S. Building,
14th Independence
Washington, D.C.
USA

Gary A. HENDERSON Director, Scientific Relations Kraft Foods 250 North Street White Plains, NY 10625 USA

Anthony HEPTON
Vice President
Dole Food Company
5795 Lindero Canyon Road

West Lake Village California, 91362 USA

Ms. Linda R. HORTON
Director
International Policy (FDA) (HF-23)
U.S. Food and Drug Administration
Department of Health and Human Services
5600 Fishers Lane
Rockville, MD 20857
USA

Ms. Julia C. HOWELL Director Regulatory Submissions The Coca Cola Company 310 North Avenue Atlanta, GA 30301 USA

Gordon KEMP Director Science Policy Affairs Pfizer Central Research Eastern Point Rd. Groton, CT 06340 USA

Eddie KIMBRELL President Kimbrell Associates 13209 Moss Ranch Lane Fairfax, VA 22033 USA

John KVENBERG
Chairman
Food Hygiene Committee (Codex)
Food and Drug Administration
Department of Health and Human Services
Room 3014, HFS-10
200 C Street, SW.
Washington, DC 20204 USA

Rodney LEONARD
Executive Director
Community Nutrition Institute
Suite 413
910 17th Street, NW.
Washington, DC 20814
USA

C.W. McMILLAN
President
C.W. McMillan Company
P.O. Box 10009
Alexandria, VA 22310-0009
USA

Marvin A. NORCROSS
U.S. Coordinator for Codex
Food Safety and Inspection Service
Room 311, West End Court
1255 22nd Street, NW
Washington, D.C. 20250-3700
USA

Ms. Rhonda NALLY
Executive Officer for Codex Alimentarius
Food Safety and Inspection Service
U.S. Department of Agriculture
1255 22nd St. N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20250-3700
USA

Marvin A. NORCROSS
U.S. Coordinator for Codex Alimentarius
Food Safety and Inspection Service
U.S. Department of Agriculture
1255 22nd St. N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20250 - 3700
USA

Ms. Leslie G. SARASIN
Executive Vice President and Staff Counsel
American Frozen Food Institute
1764 Old Meadow Lane, Suite 350
McLean, VA 22102
USA

Lyle SEBRANEK

Director

Multilateral Trade Policy Affairs Division

Foreign Agricultural Service

U.S. Department of Agriculture

14th and Independence Avenue, SW.

Washington, DC 20250

USA

Fred SHANK

Director

Center for Food Safety and Applied Nutrition

(HFS-1)

Food and Drug Administration

200 C Street SW

Washington, D.C.

USA

Stephen F. SUNDLOF

Director

Center for Veterinary Medicine (HFV-1)

Food and Drug Administration

7500 Standish Place

Rockville, MD 20855

USA

Steven N. TANNER

Director

Quality Assurance and Research Division

Grain Inspection

Packers and Stockyards Administration

U.S. Department of Agriculture

10383 N. Executive Hills Blvd.

Kansas City, MO 64153-1394

USA

Jackson THAD

Director of Issues Management Westle, USA

20944 Coxmill Ct

Ashburn Vu 22011

USA

Ms. Sharon R. THOMPSON

Special Assistant to the Director

Center for Veterinary Medicine

Food and Drug Administration MPN 2, HFV-3 7500 Standish Place Rockville, MD 20855 USA

Francis J. VACCA Agricultural Attaché Permanent Representative to FAO Via Sardegna 49 00187 Rome Italy

Ms. Kaye WACHSMUTH
Deputy Director
Center for Food Safety and Applied Nutrition
(HFS-2)
Food and Drug Administration
200 C Street, SW.
Washington, DC 20204
USA

H. Michael WEHR
Director
International Food Standards
Technical Assessment Systems, Inc.
The Flour Mill
1000 Potomac St., NW.
Washington, DC 20007
USA

URUGUAY

Julio Cesar LUPINACCI
Ambassador
Permanent Representative of Uruguay to FAO
Embassy of Uruguay
Via Veneto 183
00187 Roma
Italy

Galdos UGARTE Director Unidad Asuntos Internacionales Ministerio Ganadería Agricultura y Pesca Constituyente 1476 3º Piso Montevideo

Uruguay

Arturo NAVARRO

Director General

Industria, Energía y Mineria

Rincon y Ciudadela

Uruguay

Mrs. Graziella DUBRA

Ministro

Representante Permanente Adjunto ante FAO

Embajada del Uruguay

183 Via Veneto

00187 Roma

Italy

Mrs. Ana BERTI

Director

Unidad de Calidad

Ministerio de Ganadería, Agricultura y Pesca

Millán 4703

Montevideo

Uruguay

Juan Angel RODRIGUEZ-SERVETTI

Sub Gerente

Laboratorio Tecnologico del Uruguay (LATU)

Av. Italia 6201

Montevideo

Uruguay

ZIMBABWE

D. B. NHARI

Government Analyst

Ministry of Health and Child Welfare

P.O. Box CY 231

Causeway

Harare

Zimbabwe

OBSERVER COUNTRIES
PAYS OBSERVATEURS
PAISES OBSERVADORES

NIGER

Hadization IBRAHIM Représentant Permanent suppléant de l'Ambassade du Niger auprès de la FAO Via Antonio Baiamonti, 10 00195 Roma Italy

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS ORGANISATIONS INTERNATIONALES ORGANIZACIONES INTERNACIONALES

ASSOCIATION OF EUROPEAN CELIAC SOCIETIES (AOECS)

Mrs. Hertha DEUTSCH Director, AOECS Anton Baumgartnerstrasse 44/C5/2302 A-1230 Vienna Austria

COCOA PRODUCERS ALLIANCE (COPAL) ALLIANCE DES PAYS PRODUCTEURS DE CACAO ALIANZA DE PRODUCTORES DE CACAO

A.S. AKE
Agro-Economist
Cocoa Producers' Alliance
Western House (11th Floor)
8/10 Broad Street
P.O. Box 1718 Lagos
Nigeria

COMITE DES FABRICANTS D'ACIDE GLUTAMIQUE DE LA COMMUNAUTE ECONOMIQUE EUROPEENNE (COFAG)

Yannick Y. O'HARA Scientific Representative, COFAG 16 rue Ballu 75009 Paris France Ms. Margaret O. ABIAGOM 16 rue Ballu 75009 Paris France

COMMISSION OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY COMMISSION DE LA COMMUNAUTE EUROPEENNE COMISIÓN DE LA COMUNIDAD EUROPEA

G. CRAUSER

Directeur

Direction Générale de l'Industrie, DG III E

European Union

200 Rue de la Loi

B-1049 Bruxelles

Belgique

Mme O. DEMINE

Administrateur Principal

Direction Générale de l'Industrie

Rue de la Loi 200

B-1049 Bruxelles

Belgique

Egon GAERNER

Chef d'Unité

Direction Générale de l'Industrie

200 Rue de la Loi

B-1049 Bruxelles

Belgique

L. HOELGAARD

Directeur

Direction Générale de l'Agriculture, D.6 VI

200 Rue de la Loi

B-1049 Bruxelles

Belgique

B. HOGBEN

Chef d'Unité Adjoint

Veterinary Legislation

Direction Générale de l'Agriculture

86 Rue de la Loi

B-1049 Bruxelles

Belgique

Ms. Barbara RÖSTEL-PETERS
Directorate-General Industry
Pharmaceuticals - DG III/E/3
Rue de la Loi 200
B-1049 Bruxelles
Belgium

E. SCHULTE
Administrateur
Direction Générale de l'Agriculture
130, Rue de la Loi
B-1049 Brussels
Belgique

COMMITTEE OF THE MAYONNAISE AND CONDIMENT SAUCE INDUSTRIES OF THE EEC

COMITE DES INDUSTRIES DES MAYONNAISES ET SAUCES CONDIMENTAIRES DE LA COMMUNAUTE ECONOMIQUE EUROPEENNE (CIMSCEE)

Michel COENEN
Secrétaire Général
CIMSCEE
Avenue de Cortenbergh 172
B-1040 Bruxelles
Belgium

CONFEDERATION OF THE FOOD AND DRINK INDUSTRIES OF THE EU CONFEDERATION DES INDUSTRIES AGRO-ALIMENTAIRES DE L'UE (CIAA)

D. TAEYMANS
Senior Manager
Scientific and Regulatory Affairs
CIAA
Rue de la Loi 74
B-1040 Bruxelles
Belgium

CONSUMERS INTERNATIONAL

John BEISHON
Codex Representative
Consumers International
421 Ditchling Road
Brighton BN1 6XB
UK

Ms. Karin ANDRESEN
Head of Department
Consumers International
Forbrugerradet
Postbox 2188
DK-1017
Copenhagen K
Denmark

Ms. Sharon DEE Campaigns Officer Consumers International 24 Highbury Crescent London N5 1RX UK

Ms. Diane McCREA Consumers International c/o Consumers' Association 2 Marylebone Road London NW1 1DF UK

CONFEDERATION OF EUROPEAN SOFT DRINKS ASSOCIATIONS (CESDA) CONFEDERATION DES ASSOCIATIONS EUROPEENNES DE BOISSONES REFRAICHISSANTES

Alain BEAUMONT Secretary General CESDA Boulevard Louis Schmidt 35/P, Box 14 1040 Brussels Belgium

Rolph LANGLAIS
Chairman Technical Committee
CESDA
Boulevard Louis Schmidt 35/P, Box 14
1040 Brussels
Belgium

COUNCIL OF EUROPE CE CONSEIL D'EUROPE CONSEJO DE EUROPA Peter W.A. BAUM
Principal Administrative Officer
Partial Agreement Division in the Social and Public Health Field
Council of Europe
F-67075 Strasbourg Cedex
France

COUNCIL OF MINISTERS OF THE EU CONSEIL DES MINISTRES DE L'UE CONSEJO DE MINISTROS DE LA UE

Paul CULLEY
Secretariat of the Council
of Ministers of the EU
175 rue de la Loi
1048 Bruxelles
Belgique

Mme Muriel FOURNY Secrétaire Secretariat of the Council of Ministers of the EU Rue de la Loi 175 B1048 Bruxelles Belgique

E.C. REPRESENTATION TO FAO REPRESENTATION DE LA C.E. AUPRES DE LA FAO REPRESENTACION DE LA C.E. ANTE LA FAO

Luis DELGADO First Secretary EC Representation to FAO Via IV Novembre 149 00187 Rome Italy

Mrs. Sara GUALANDI Third Secretary EC Representation to FAO Via IV Novembre 149 00187 Rome Italy

EUROPEAN FOOD LAW ASSOCIATION (EFLA) ASSOCIATION EUROPEENNE POUR LE DROIT DE L'ALIMENTATION ASOCIACION EUROPEA PARA EL DERECHO ALIMENTARIO

Mrs. Barbro BLOMBERG Lawyer Mohultsvagen 8 A 71694 Mullhyttan Sweden

EUROPEAN VEGETABLE PROTEIN FEDERATION FEDERATION EUROPEENNE DES PROTEINES VEGETALES FEDERACION EUROPEA DE PROTEINAS VEGETALES (EUVEPRO)

Johan HALLAERT Secretary General EUVEPRO 172/6 Kortenberglaan 1040 Bruxelles Belgium

F.I.E.B.

Jean GIELEN
Secretary-General
F.I.E.B.
51, Av. General de Gaulle (Bt 5)
B1050 Bruxelles
Belgique

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BOUILLON AND SOUP INDUSTRIES ASSOCIATION INTERNATIONALE DES INDUSTRIES DES BOUILLONS ET POTAGES (AIIBP)

Hans-J. MÜRAU Secretary General FAIBP/AIIBP Reuterstraβe 151 53113 Bonn Germany

Ernst G. RAPP
Director
139, Avenue Reine Astrid, Bte. 5

B-1950 Kraainem - Bruxelles Belgium

INTERNATIONAL COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE (ICA) ALLIANCE COOPERATIVE INTERNATIONALE ALIANZA COOPERATIVA INTERNACIONAL

Liuv VISANI Alternative Representative International Cooperative Alliance auprès FAO Geneva Switzerland

INTERNATIONAL COUNCIL OF GROCERY MANUFACTURERS' ASSOCIATIONS (ICGMA) CONSEIL INTERNATIONAL DES ASSOCIATIONS DE FABRICANTS DE PRODUITS D'EPICERIE

Ms. Gloria BROOKS-RAY
Director
Regulatory Affairs and Nutritional Sciences
CPC International Inc.
P.O. Box 8000
International Plaza
Englewood Cliffs, NJ 07632
USA

Sherwin GARDNER
Executive Secretary
International Council of Grocery
Manufacturers' Associations (ICGMA)
5504 Goldsboro Road
Bethesda, Maryland 20817
USA

INTERNATIONAL DAIRY FEDERATION (IDF) FEDERATION INTERNATIONALE DE LAITERIE FEDERACION INTERNACIONAL DE LECHERIA

Edward HOPKIN
Secretary General
International Dairy Federation
41 Square Vergote

1040 Brussels

Belgium

Claus HEGGUM Head of Department Danish Dairy Board Frederiks Allé 22 DK-8000 Aarhus C Denmark

A. OTERHOLM

President Commission D c/o Norwegian Dairies Association POB 9051 Gronland N-0133 Oslo Norway

INTERNATIONAL DIABETIC FEDERATION

John BYRNE
1 Allée du Herisson
Brussels
Belgium

INTERNATIONAL FEDERATION OF BEEKEEPERS' ASSOCIATION (APIMONDIA) FEDERATION INTERNATIONALE DES ASSOCIATIONS D'APICULTURE FEDERACION INTERNACIONAL DE ASOCIACIONES DE APICULTURA

Raymond BORNECK President APIMONDIA 2, Rue du Creux 39380 Montbarrey France

Riccardo JANNONI-SEBASTIANINI Secretary-General C.so Vittorio Emanuele 100 00124 Rome Italy

Mrs. Livia PERSANO ODDO Istituto Zoologia Agraria Via L. Rech 36 00156 Rome Italy

INTERNATIONAL FEDERATION OF GLUCOSE INDUSTRIES (IFGI) FEDERATION INTERNATIONALE DES INDUSTRIES DE GLUCOSE FEDERACION INTERNACIONAL DE LAS INDUSTRIAS DE GLUCOSA

Kyd D. BRENNER
Vice President
Corn Refiners Association, Inc.
1701 Pennsylvania Ave., NW.
Washington, DC 20006
USA

WORLD ASSOCIATION OF FOOD GRADE BIOPOLYMER PRODUCERS ASSOCIATION MONDIALE DES PRODUCTEURS DE BIOPOLYMERES ALIMENTAIRES

Mrs. Alexandra HADJIYIANNI European Regulatory Affairs Manager FMC Europe NU 480 Av. Louise 1050 Brussels Belgium

WORLD TRADE ORGANIZATION (WTO/GATT) ORGANISATION MONDIALE DU COMMERCE ORGANIZACION MUNDIAL DEL COMERCIO

Mrs. Gretchen STANTON Counsellor Agriculture Division 154 Rue de Lausanne Geneva Switzerland

WORLDWIDE COUNCIL OF THE ANIMAL HEALTH INDUSTRY CONSULTATION MONDIALE DE L'INDUSTRIE DE LA SANTE ANIMALE (COMISA)

Peter ALTREUTHER
President of COMISA
c/o Bayer Animal Health
D-51368 - Leverkusen
Germany

Raul GUERRERO Manager, International Research Lilly Research Co. 2424 W, 131 St. Carmel, IN USA

Patrick MOORE Mallinckrodt Veterinary 421 E. Hawley Street Mundelein, IL 60060 USA

W. Martin STRAUSS
Agricultural Regulations Director
The Monsanto Company
700 14th Street, N.W. Suite 1100
Washington, DC 20005
USA

Martin TERRY
Vice President
Animal Health Institute
501 Wythe Street
Alexandria, Virginia 22309-1917
USA

Christian VERSCHUEREN Secretary-General COMISA Rue Defacqz 1 B-1050 Brussels Belgium

Ricardo WYSE FILASA H. Yrigoyen 850 Buenos Aires Argentina

SECRETARY, CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION SECRETAIRE, COMMISSION DU CODEX ALIMENTARIUS SECRETARIO, COMISION DEL CODEX ALIMENTARIUS

Richard J. DAWSON

Chief

Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme and Food Quality and Standards Service Food and Nutrition Division

FAO

Via delle Terme di Caracalla 00100 Rome Italy

SESSION SECRETARIES SECRETAIRES POUR LA SESSION SECRETARIOS PARA EL PERIODO DE SESIONES

Alan W. RANDELL
Senior Officer
Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme
Food and Nutrition Division
FAO
Via delle Terme di Caracalla
00100 Rome
Italy

Fritz KÄFERSTEIN
Chief
Food Safety Unit
Division of Food and Nutrition WHO
CH-1211 Geneva 27
Switzerland

LEGAL COUNSEL CONSEILLER JURIDIQUE ASESORIA JURIDICA

G. MOORE Legal Counsel Legal Office FAO Via delle Terme di Caracalla 00100 Rome Italy

R. STEIN

Consultant (former Chief)
General Legal Affairs Service
FAO
Via delle Terme di Caracalla
00100 Rome
Italy

JOINT FAO/WHO FOOD STANDARDS PROGRAMME PERSONNEL PERSONNEL DU PROGRAMME MIXTE FAO/OMS SUR LES NORMES ALIMENTAIRES PERSONAL DEL PROGRAMA CONJUNTO FAO/OMS SOBRE NORMAS ALIMENTARIAS

David H. BYRON
Food Standards Officer
Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme FAO
Via delle Terme di Caracalla
00100 Rome
Italy

George BAPTIST
Food Standards Officer
Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme FAO
Via delle Terme di Caracalla
00100 Rome
Italy

Ms. Selma DOYRAN Food Standards Officer Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme FAO Via delle Terme di Caracalla 00100 Rome Italy

Ms. Yukiko YAMADA
Food Standards Officer
Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme FAO
Via delle Terme di Caracalla
00100 Rome
Italy

Ms. Gae PINCUS Consultant P.O. Box 59 Glebe, NSW 2037 Australia

FAO PERSONNEL PERSONNEL DE LA FAO PERSONAL DE LA FAO

John R. LUPIEN
Director
Food and Nutrition Division
FAO

Via delle Terme di Caracalla 00100 Rome Italy

Ezzeddine BOUTRIF
Senior Officer
Food Quality and Consumer Protection Group
FAO
Via delle Terme di Caracalla
00100 Rome
Italy

Anthony J. WHITEHEAD Senior Officer Food Quality Liaison Group Food and Nutrition Division FAO Via delle Terme di Caracalla 00100 Rome Italy

Kevin HAMMER
Consultant
64 Hicks Street
Red hill
Canberra, ACT 2603
Australia

WHO PERSONNEL PERSONNEL DE LA FAO PERSONAL DE LA FAO

Fernando ANTEZANA Assistant Director-General WHO 20, Avenue Appia 1211 Geneva 27 Switzerland

Kazuaki MIYAGISHIMA Scientist, Food Safety Unit WHO 20, Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27 Switzerland

APPENDIX 2

STATEMENTS OF PRINCIPLE CONCERNING THE ROLE OF SCIENCE IN THE CODEX DECISION-MAKING PROCESS AND THE EXTENT TO WHICH OTHER FACTORS ARE TAKEN INTO ACCOUNT

- 1. The food standards, guidelines and other recommendations of Codex Alimentarius shall be based on the principle of sound scientific analysis and evidence, involving a thorough review of all relevant information, in order that the standards assure the quality and safety of the food supply.
- 2. When elaborating and deciding upon food standards Codex Alimentarius will have regard, where appropriate, to other legitimate factors relevant for the health protection of consumers and for the promotion of fair practices in food trade.
- 3. In this regard it is noted that food labelling plays an important role in furthering both of these objectives.
- 4. When the situation arises that members of Codex agree on the necessary level of protection of public health but hold differing views about other considerations, members may abstain from acceptance of the relevant standard without necessarily preventing the decision by Codex.

APPENDIX 3

AMENDMENTS TO THE RULES OF PROCEDURE OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

Adopted by the Commission at its 21st Session 1995 Subject to approval by the Directors-General of FAO and WHO

Rule II - Officers

1. Amend Rule II.1 by the insertion of the following sentences after the second sentence:

The Chairman and Vice-Chairmen may remain in office only with the continuing endorsement of the respective Member of the Commission of which they were a delegate at the time of election. The Directors-General of FAO and WHO shall declare a position vacant when advised by the Member of the Commission that such endorsement has ceased.

- 2. Amend Rule II.4(c) to read as follows:
- (c) The functions of the Coordinators shall be:
 - to assist and coordinate the work of the Codex Committees set up under Rule IX.1(b)(i) in their region or group of countries in the preparation of draft standards, guidelines and other recommendations for submission to the Commission.
 - ii. to assist the Executive Committee and the Commission, as required, by advising them of the views of countries and recognized regional intergovernmental and non-governmental organizations in their respective regions on matters under discussion or of interest.
- 3. Amend Rule II.4(d) and add new Rule II.4(e) as follows:
- (d) Where a Coordinating Committee has been set up under Rule IX.1(b)(ii), the Coordinator of the region involved should be the Chairman of the Committee.
- (e) Where a Coordinator is not able to carry out the functions of office, the Member of the Commission of which the Coordinator was a delegate at the time of appointment shall inform the Secretary of the Commission accordingly and shall appoint an interim Coordinator until such time as the Coordinator is able to resume those functions or until the next session of the Commission.

PRINCIPLES OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS, GUIDELINES FOR CODEX

COMMITTEES AND RELATIONS BETWEEN CODEX COMMODITY COMMITTEES

AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

GENERAL PRINCIPLES OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS (Procedural Manual, Section D)

Revision of Codex Standards (New text)

8. The Codex Alimentarius Commission and its subsidiary bodies are committed to revision as necessary of Codex standards and related texts to ensure that they are consistent with and reflect current scientific knowledge and other relevant information. When required, a standard or related text shall be revised or removed using the same procedures as followed for the elaboration of a new standard. Each member of the Codex Alimentarius Commission is responsible for identifying, and presenting to the appropriate committee, any new scientific and other relevant information which may warrant revision of any existing Codex standards or related texts.

A. GUIDELINES FOR CODEX COMMITTEES

Introduction

1. By virtue of Article 7 of the Statutes of the Codex Alimentarius Commission and Rule IX.1(b)(i) of its Rules of Procedure, the Commission has established a number of Codex Committees to prepare standards in accordance with the Procedure for the Elaboration of Codex Standards and Coordinating Committees to exercise general coordination of its work in specific regions or groups of countries. The Rules of Procedure of the Commission shall apply, *mutatis mutandis*, to Codex Committees and Coordinating Committees.

Composition of Codex Committees

Membership

2. Membership of Codex Committees is open to Members of the Commission who have notified the Director-General of FAO or WHO of their desire to be considered as members thereof or to selected members designated by the Commission. Membership of Regional Coordinating Committees is open only to Members of the Commission belonging to the region or groups of countries concerned.

Organization and Duties

Chairmanship

5. A member country to which a Codex Committee has been assigned is responsible for providing all conference services including the secretariat. The secretariat should have adequate administrative support staff able to work easily in the languages used at the session and should have at its disposal adequate word processing and document reproducing equipment. Interpretation, preferably simultaneous, should be provided from and into all languages used at the session, and if the report of the session is to be adopted in more than one of the working languages of the Committee, then the services of a translator should be available. The Committee secretariat and the Joint FAO/WHO (Codex) Secretariat are charged with the preparation of the draft report in consultation with the rapporteurs, if any.

Duties and Terms of Reference

- 6. The duties of a Codex Committee shall include:
 - a. the drawing up of a list of priorities as appropriate, among the subjects and products within its terms of reference,
 - consideration of the types of safety and quality elements (or recommendations) to be covered, whether in standards for general application or in reference to specific food products,

- c. consideration of the types of product to be covered by standards, e.g., whether materials for further processing into food should be covered,
- d. preparation of draft Codex standards within its terms of reference,
- e. reporting to each session of the Commission on the progress of its work and, where necessary, on any difficulties caused by its terms of reference, together with suggestions for their amendment,
- f. the review and, as necessary, revision of existing standards and related texts on a scheduled, periodic basis to ensure that the standards and related texts within its terms of reference are consistent with current scientific knowledge and other relevant information.

SESSIONS

Invitations and Provisional Agenda

7. (a) Sessions of Codex Committees and Coordinating Committees will be convened by the Directors-General of FAO and WHO in consultation with the chairman of the respective Codex Committee. The letter of invitation and provisional agenda shall be prepared by the Chief, Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme, FAO, Rome, in consultation with the chairman of the committee for issue by the Directors-General to all Members and Associate Members of FAO and WHO or, in the case of Coordinating Committees, to the countries of the region or group of countries concerned, Codex Contact Points and interested international organizations in accordance with the official mailing lists of FAO and WHO. Chairmen should, before finalizing the drafts, inform and consult with the national Codex Contact Point where one has been established, and, if necessary, obtain clearance from the national authorities concerned (Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Ministry of Agriculture, Ministry of Health, or as the case may be). The invitation and Provisional Agenda will be translated and distributed by FAO/WHO in the working languages of the Commission at least four months before the date of the meeting.

(b) Invitations should include the following:

- i. title of the Codex Committee,
- ii. time and date of opening and date of closing of the session,
- iii. place of the session,
- iv. languages to be used and arrangements for interpretation, i.e., whether simultaneous or not,
- v. if appropriate, information on hotel accommodation,
- vi. request for the names of the chief delegate and other members of the delegation, and for information on whether the chief delegate of a government will be attending as a representative or in the capacity of an observer.

Replies to invitations will normally be requested to be sent to reach the chairman as early as possible and in any case not less than 30 days before the session. A copy should be sent also to the Chief, Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme, FAO, Rome. It is of the utmost

importance that by the date requested a reply to invitations should be sent by all those governments and international organizations which intend to participate. The reply should specify the number of copies and the language of the documents required.

- (c) The Provisional Agenda should state the time, date and place of the meeting and should include the following items:
 - i. adoption of the agenda,
 - ii. if considered necessary, election of rapporteurs,
 - iii. items relating to subject matter to be discussed, including, where appropriate, the step in the Commission's Procedure for the Elaboration of Standards at which the item is being dealt with at the session. There should also be reference to the Committee papers relevant to the item,
 - iv. any other business,
 - v. consideration of date and place of next session,
 - vi. adoption of draft report.

The work of the Committee and the length of the meeting should be so arranged as to leave sufficient time at the end of the session for a report of the Committee's transactions to be agreed.

Organization of Work

- 8. A Codex or Coordinating Committee may assign specific tasks to countries, groups of countries or to international organizations represented at meetings of the Committee and may ask member countries and international organizations for views on specific points. *Ad hoc* working groups established to accomplish specific tasks shall be disbanded once the tasks have been accomplished as determined by the Committee. Reports of *ad hoc* working groups shall be distributed to all members of the Committee and observers in time to allow full consideration of the working groups' recommendations. A Codex or Coordinating Committee may not set up standing sub-committees, whether open to all Members of the Commission or not, without the specific approval of the Commission.
- 9. (e) Consecutive reference numbers in suitable series should be assigned to all documents of Codex Committees. (End of the paragraph unchanged).

Conduct of Meetings

10. (a) Meetings of Codex and Coordinating Committees shall be held in public unless the Committee decides otherwise. Member countries responsible for Codex and Coordinating Committees shall decide who should open meetings on their behalf. The chairman should invite observations from members of the Committee concerning the Provisional Agenda and in the light of such observations formally request the Committee to adopt the Provisional Agenda or the amended agenda. Meetings should be conducted in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the Codex Alimentarius Commission. Attention is particularly drawn to Rule

VI.7 which reads: "The provisions of Rule XII of the General Rules of FAO shall apply *mutatis mutandis* to all matters which are not specifically dealt with under Rule VI of the present Rules." Rule XII of the the General Rules of FAO, a copy of which will be supplied to all chairmen, of Codex and Coordinating Committees, gives full instructions on the procedures to be followed in dealing with voting, points of order, adjournment and suspension of meetings, adjournment and closure of discussions on a particular item, reconsideration of a subject already decided and the order in which amendments should be dealt with.

Reports

(c) The Joint FAO/WHO Secretariat should ensure that, as soon as possible and in any event not later than one month after the end of the session, copies of the final report, as adopted, are sent to all participants, and all Codex Contact Points.

Drawing-up of Codex Standards and Related Texts

- 12. A Codex committee, in drawing up standards and related texts, should bear in mind the following:
 - a. The guidance given in the General Principles of the Codex Alimentarius;
 - b. that all standards and related texts should have a preface containing the following information:
 - i. the description of the standard or related text,
 - ii. a brief description of the scope and purpose(s) of the standard or related text,
 - iii. references including the step which the standard or related text has reached in the Commission's Procedures for the Elaboration of Standards, together with the date on which the draft was approved,
 - iv. matters in the draft standard or related text requiring endorsement or action by other Codex Committees.
 - that for standards or any related text for a product which includes a number of sub-categories, the Committee should give preference to the development of mayeither draft a general standard or related text with specific provisions as necessary for sub-categories with different requirements;
 - d. that, in general, it should not be necessary to change the name of a food solely-because of the presence of a permitted food additive. However, in some instances, where the additive results in a significant change in the product, appropriate labelling-may be required in addition to the listing of the additive among the declaration of ingredients.

RELATIONS BETWEEN COMMODITY COMMITTEES AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

Codex Committees may ask the advice and guidance of committees having responsibility for matters applicable to all foods on any points coming within their province.

The Codex Committees on Food Labelling; Food Additives and Contaminants; Methods of Analysis and Sampling; Food Hygiene; Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses; and Food Import and Export Inspection and Certification Systems may establish general provisions on matters within their terms of reference. These provisions should only be incorporated into Codex Commodity Standards by reference unless there is a need for doing otherwise.

Codex Commodity standards shall contain sections on hygiene, labelling and methods of analysis and sampling and these sections should contain all of the relevant provisions of the standard. Provisions of Codex General Standards, Codes or Guidelines shall only be incorporated into Codex Commodity Standards by reference unless there is a need for doing otherwise. Where Codex Committees are of the opinion that the general provisions are not applicable to one or more commodity standards, they may request the responsible Committees to endorse deviations from the general provisions of the Codex Alimentarius. Such requests should be fully justified and supported by available scientific evidence and other relevant information. Sections on hygiene, labelling, and methods of analysis and sampling which contain specific provisions or provisions supplementing the Codex General Standards, Codes or Guidelines shall be referred to the responsible Codex Committees at the most suitable time during Steps 3, 4 and 5 of the Procedure for the Elaboration of Codex Standards and Related Texts, though such reference should not be allowed to delay the progress of the standard to the subsequent steps of the Procedure.

The following amendments apply to the procedures for endorsement of provisions relating to Food Labelling, Food Additives, Food Hygiene:

Food Labelling: Delete the first paragraph, which is now covered by the general description of the endorsement procedures above. The remainder of this section, adopted by the Commission in 1991, remains unchanged.

Food Additives: This section is temporarily retained pending clarification on how Commodity Committees would be able to interact with the Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants within the framework of the Draft General Standard for Food Additives in the course of elaboration.

Food Hygiene: Delete the first paragraph, which is now covered by the general description of the endorsement procedures above. The remainder of this section, adopted by the Commission in 1993, remains unchanged.

PROVISIONS TO BE AMENDED IN THE PROCEDURAL, MANUAL TO REMOVE

GENDER-SPECIFIC REFERENCES (English Only)

<u>Present terminology</u> CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMEN

Proposed terminology CHAIRPERSON, VICE-CHAIRPERSONS

Section I

Chapter A Statutes of the Codex Alimentarius Commission

1. art. 9[7]²;

Chapter B Rules of Procedure of the Codex Alimentarius Commission

- 1. four times in rule II.1[9];
- 2. five times in rule II.2[9–10];
- 3. ten times in rule II.3[10];
- 4. rule II.4(c) [11];
- 5. rule II.4(d) [11];
- 6. twice in rule III.1 [11];
- 7. rule III.2 [12];
- 8. four times in rule III.3 [12];
- 9. rule III.4 [12];
- 10. rule IV.1 [12];
- 11. rule V.1 [13];
- 12. rule V.5 [14];
- 13. rule VI.5 [15];
- 14. rule VI.6 [16];
- 15. rule IX.6(a) [19];
- 16. rule IX.6(b) [19];
- 17. rule IX.6(c) [19];
- 18. rule IX.7 [19];
- 19. rule XI.3 [21]³;

Chapter C Part 3 - Guide to the consideration of Standards at Step 8 of the Procedure for the elaboration of Codex Standards including consideration of any statements relating to economic impact

1. three times in paragraph 4 [34];

Arrangements for the amendment of Codex Standards elaborated by Codex Committees which have adjourned *sine die*

1. paragraph 3. (ii) [38];

Section II

Chapter G Guidelines for Codex Committees

- 1. four times in paragraph 4 [66];
- 2. five times in paragraph 7.(a) [67–68];
- 3. paragraph 7.(b), final part [68];
- 4. paragraph 9.(a) [70];
- 5. paragraph 9.(b) [70];
- 6. paragraph 9.(e) [70];
- 7. paragraph 9.(f) [71];
- 8. twice in paragraph 10.(a) [71–72];
- 9. three times in paragraph 10.(b) [72];

Section III

Chapter K List of Subsidiary bodies of the Codex Alimentarius Commission

Part B

1 body 1, under "Terms of reference" [127];

Part C

1. body 3, under the heading "Membership" [156];

APPENDIX 4

LIST OF STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS ADOPTED BY THE 21ST

SESSION OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

Part I. Standards And Related Texts Adopted at Step 8

Standard or Related Text	References	Decision
General Standard for Food Additives:	ALINORM 95/12	Adopted. See paragraph 39.

¹ The numbers in square brackets refer to the page numbers of the Procedural Manual, Eighth Edition.

² "chairmanship" in the third line, should be replaced by "the Chair".

³ "chairmanship" should be replaced by "the Chair".

	A 11 11	
Preamble	Appendix II	
Specifications for the Identity and Purity of Food Additives	ALINORM 95/12 Appendix IV ALINORM 95/12A Appendix IV	Adopted.
Amendments to the International Numbering System for Food Additives	ALINORM 95/12 Appendix V	Adopted.
General Standard for Contaminants and Toxins in Foods: Preamble	ALINORM 95/12A Appendix VI	Adopted.
Recommended Method of Sampling for the Determination of Pesticide Residues in Milk, Milk Products and Eggs	ALINORM 95/24A Appendix II	Adopted.
Revised List of Methods of Analysis for Pesticide Residues	ALINORM 95/24A Appendix II	Adopted.
Maximum Residue Limits for Pesticides	ALINORM 95/24A- Add.1	Adopted. Including the deletion and amendment of certain Codex MRLs as contained in the reference.
Maximum Residue Limits for the following Veterinary Drugs: Estradiol 17-β Progesterone Testosterone Zeranol	ALINORM 91/31 Appendix IV	Adopted.
Trenbolone Acetate Sulfadimidine Flubendazole Thiabendazole Isometamidium	ALINORM 93/31 Appendix II ALINORM 95/31 Appendix II	Adopted.
Code of Hygienic Practice for Spices and Dried Aromatic Plants	ALINORM 95/13 Appendix II	Adopted.
(Latin America and Caribbean Regional) Code of Hygienic Practice for the Preparation and Sale of Street- Vended Foods	ALINORM 95/36 Appendix II	Adopted. See also para. 50.

	I	
Codex General Methods of Analysis for Contaminants	ALINORM 95/23 Appendix III	Adopted.
Recommended Protocol for the Design, Conduct and Interpretation of Method Performance Studies	ALINORM 95/23 Appendix V	Adopted.
Harmonized Protocol for the Proficiency Testing of (Chemical) Analytical Laboratories	ALINORM 95/23 Appendix V	Adopted.
Principles for Food Import and Export Certification and Inspection	ALINORM 95/30A Appendix II	Adopted with minor amendments: see para. 54.
Guidelines for the Exchange of Information in Food Control Emergency Situations	ALINORM 95/30A Appendix III	Adopted.
General Statement on Provisions concerning Inspection and Certification in Codex Standards	ALINORM 95/30A paras. 96	Adopted for inclusion in Procedural Manual.
General Standard for Quick Frozen Fish Fillets	ALINORM 95/18 Appendix II	Adopted with editorial changes.
Standard for Quick Frozen Raw Squid	ALINORM 95/18 Appendix III	Adopted.
Revised General Standard for Quick Frozen Blocks of Fish Fillets, Minced Fish Flesh and Mixtures of Fillets and Minced Fish Flesh	ALINORM 95/18 Appendix IV	Adopted.
Revised Standard for Quick Frozen Finfish, Eviscerated or Uneviscerated	ALINORM 95/18 Appendix V	Adopted.
Revised Standard for Quick Frozen Lobsters	ALINORM 95/18 Appendix VI	Adopted.
Revised Standard for Quick Frozen Fish Sticks (Fish Fingers), Fish Portions and Fish Fillets - Breaded or in Batter	ALINORM 95/18 Appendix VII	Adopted with editorial changes.
Revised Standard for Quick Frozen Shrimps or Prawns	ALINORM 95/18 Appendix VIII	Adopted.
Revised Standard for Canned Crab Meat	ALINORM 95/18 Appendix IX	Adopted with amendments. See para. 61.
Revised Standard for Canned Finfish	ALINORM 95/18	Adopted.

	Appendix X	
Revised Standard for Canned Salmon	ALINORM 95/18 Appendix XI	Adopted with an editorial changes.
Revised Standard for Sardines and Sardine-Type Products	ALINORM 95/18 Appendix XII	Adopted with an editorial change.
Revised Standard for Canned Shrimps or Prawns	ALINORM 95/18 Appendix XIII	Adopted.
Revised Standard for Canned Tuna and Bonito	ALINORM 95/18 Appendix XIV	Adopted.
Revised Standard for Salted Fish and Dried Salted Fish of the <i>Gadidae</i> Family of Fishes	ALINORM 95/18 Appendix XV	Adopted at Steps 5 & 8 with omission of Steps 6 & 7.
General Standard for Edible Palm Olein	ALINORM 95/17 Appendix II	Adopted.
General Standard for Edible Palm Stearin	ALINORM 95/17 Appendix III	Adopted.
Standard for Whey Powders	ALINORM 95/11 Appendix II	Adopted.
Standard for Edible Casein Products	ALINORM 95/11 Appendix III	Adopted with minor amendments; see para. 71.
Standard for Litchi	ALINORM 95/35 Appendix II	Adopted.
Standard for Avocado	ALINORM 95/35 Appendix III	Adopted with minor amendment; see para. 73.
Code of Practice for the Packaging and Transport of Tropical Fresh Fruit and Vegetables	ALINORM 95/35 Appendix VII	Adopted.
Standard for Rice	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix III	Adopted.
Standard for Wheat and Durum Wheat	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix IV	Adopted.
Standard for Peanuts	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix V	Adopted.
Standard for Oats	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix VI	Adopted.
Standard for Couscous	ALINORM 95/28-	Adopted.

	I	
	Appendum	
Standard for Wheat Flour	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix VII	Adopted at Steps 5 & 8 with ommission of Steps 6 & 7.
Standard for Maize (Corn)	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix VIII	Adopted at Steps 5 & 8 with ommission of Steps 6 & 7.
Standard for Whole Maize (Corn) Meal	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix IX	Adopted at Steps 5 & 8 with ommission of Steps 6 & 7.
Standard for Degermed Maize (Corn) Meal and Maize (Corn) Grits	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix X	Adopted at Steps 5 & 8 with ommission of Steps 6 & 7.
Standard for Certain Pulses	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix XI	Adopted at Steps 5 & 8 with ommission of Steps 6 & 7.
Standard for Sorghum Grains	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix XII	Adopted at Steps 5 & 8 with ommission of Steps 6 & 7.
Standard for Sorghum Flour	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix XIII	Adopted at Steps 5 & 8 with ommission of Steps 6 & 7.
Standard for Durum Wheat Semolina and Durum Wheat Flour	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix XIV	Adopted at Steps 5 & 8 with ommission of Steps 6 & 7.
Standard for Gari	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix XV	Adopted at Steps 5 & 8 with ommission of Steps 6 & 7.
Standard for Whole and Decorticated Pearl Millet Grains	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix XVI	Adopted at Steps 5 & 8 with ommission of Steps 6 & 7.
Standard for Pearl Millet Flour	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix XVII	Adopted at Steps 5 & 8 with ommission of Steps 6 & 7.
Standard for Edible Cassava Flour	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix XVIII	Adopted at Steps 5 & 8 with ommission of Steps 6 & 7.
Standard for Formula Foods for Use in Very Low Energy Diets for Weight Reduction	ALINORM 95/26 Appendix II	Adopted.
Revised Standard for Bouillons and Consommés	ALINORM 95/20 Appendix I	Adopted. See also para. 83.

PART II. DRAFT STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS ADOPTED AT STEP 5

Standard or Related Text	References	Decision
General Standard for Food Additives: Annex A - Guidelines for the Estimation of Appropriate Levels of Use of Food Additives	95/12A	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.

General Standard for Contaminants and Toxins in Foods: Criteria for the Establishment of Maximum Levels in Foods Procedure for Risk Management Decisions Format of the Standard	ALINORM 95/12A Appendix VII, Annexes I, II and III	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Maximum Residue Limits for the following Veterinary Drugs: Levamisole Diminazene	ALINORM 95/31 Appendix IV	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Guidelines on the Use of Health and Nutrition Claims; and Draft Table of Conditions for Claims for Nutrient Contents	ALINORM 95/22 Appendix III ALINORM 95/26 Appendix III	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6. See also para. 49.
Draft Guidelines for the Use of the Term Halal	ALINORM 95/22 Appendix IV	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft (African Regional) Code of Hygienic Practice for Street Foods	ALINORM 95/28 Appendix II	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft (Revised) International Code of Practice: General Principles of Food Hygiene	ALINORM 95/13 Appendix II	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Guidelines for the Exchange of Information between Countries on Rejections of Imported Food	ALINORM 95/30A Appendix IV	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Standard for Edible Fats and Oils not Covered by Individual Standards	ALINORM 95/17 Appendix V	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Standard for Named Animal Fats	ALINORM 95/17 Appendix VII	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Standard for Named Vegetable Oils	ALINORM 95/17 Appendix VIII	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Standard for Olive Oils and Olive Pomace Oils	ALINORM 95/17 Appendix X	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Standard for Mayonnaise	ALINORM	Adopted at Step 5 and

	95/17 Appendix XI	advanced to Step 6.
Draft Revised Code of Practice for the Storage and Transport of Edible Oils and Fats in Bulk	ALINORM 95/17 Appendix IV	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Revised Standard for Butter	ALINORM 95/11 Appendix IV	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Revised Standard for Milkfat Products	ALINORM 95/11 Appendix V	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Revised Standard for Evaporated Milks	ALINORM 95/11 Appendix VI	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Revised Standard for Sweetened Condensed Milks	ALINORM 95/11 Appendix VII	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Revised Standard for Milk and Cream Powders	ALINORM 95/11 Appendix VIII	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Revised Standard for Cheese	ALINORM 95/11 Appendix IX	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Revised Standard for Whey Cheese	ALINORM 95/11 Appendix X	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Standard for Mangosteen	ALINORM 95/35 Appendix V	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Guideline Levels and Sampling Plans for Total Aflatoxins in Peanuts [Intended for Further Processing]	ALINORM 95/29 Appendix II	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Standard for Sugar	CL 1995/5-S Annex I	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.
Draft Standard for Honey	CL 1995/5-S Annex II	Adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6.

APPENDIX 5

CONFIRMATION OF CHAIR OF CODEX COMMITTEES UNDER RULE IX.10

Committee	<u>Chair</u>
Codex Committee on General Principles	France
Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants	The Netherlands
Codex Committee on Food Hygiene	United States of America
Codex Committee on Food Labelling	Canada
Codex Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling	Hungary
Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues	The Netherlands
Codex Committee on Residues of Veterinary Drugs in Foods	United States of America
Codex Committee on Food Import and Export Inspection and Certification Systems	Australia
Codex Committee on Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses	Germany
Codex Committee on Cocoa Products and Chocolate	Switzerland
Codex Committee on Sugars	United Kingdom
Codex Committee on Processed Fruits and Vegetables	United States of America
Codex Committee on Fats and Oils	United Kingdom
Codex Committee on Meat Hygiene	New Zealand
Codex Committee on Processed Meat and Poultry Products	Denmark
Codex Committee on Fish and Fishery Products	Norway
Codex Committee on Edible Ices	Sweden
Codex Committee on Soups and Broths	Switzerland
Codex Committee on Cereals, Pulses and Legumes	United States of America
Codex Committee on Vegetable Proteins	Canada
Codex Committee on Fresh Fruits and Vegetables	Mexico
Codex Committee on Milk and Milk Products	New Zealand
Codex Committee on Natural Mineral Waters	Switzerland

MEMBER COUNTRIES OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

Angola
Antigua and Barbuda
Argentina
Armenia
Australia
Austria
Bahrain
Bangladesh
Barbados
Belgium
Belize
Benin
Bolivia
Botswana
Brazil
Bulgaria
Burkina Faso
Burundi
Cambodia
Cameroon
Canada
Cape Verde
Central African Republic
Chad
Chile
China
Colombia
Congo
Costa Rica
Côte d'Ivoire Croatia
Cuba
Cyprus Czech Republic
Democratic People's Rep. of Korea
Denmark
Dominica
Dominican Republic
Ecuador
Egypt
—3)F·

Albania Algeria El Salvador

Equatorial Guinea

Estonia

Ethiopia

Federated States of Micronesia

Fiji

Finland

Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia

France

Gabon

Gambia

Germany

Ghana

Greece

Grenada

Guatemala

Guinea

Guinea Bissau

Guyana

Haiti

Honduras

Hungary

Iceland

India

Indonesia

Iraq

Ireland

Islamic Rep. of Iran

Israel

Italy

Jamaica

Japan

Jordan

Kenya

Kiribati

Kuwait

Latvia

Lebanon

Lesotho

Liberia

Libya

Lithuania

Luxembourg

Madagascar

Malawi

Malaysia

Malta

Mauritius

Mexico

Mongolia

Morocco

Mozambique

Myanmar

Nepal

Netherlands

New Zealand

Nicaragua

Nigeria

Norway

Oman

Pakistan

Panama

Papua New Guinea

Paraguay

Peru

Philippines

Poland

Portugal

Qatar

Republic of Korea

Romania

Russian Federation

Rwanda

Samoa

Santa Lucia

Saudi Arabia

Senegal

Seychelles

Sierra Leone

Singapore

Slovak Republic

Slovenia

South Africa

Spain

Sri Lanka

Sudan

Suriname

Swaziland

Sweden

Switzerland

Syria

Tanzania

Thailand

Togo

Trinidad and Tobago

Tunisia

Turkey

Uganda

United Arab Emirates

United Kingdom

United States of America

Uruguay

Venezuela

Viet Nam

Yemen

Yugoslavia

Zaire

Zambia

Zimbabwe